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Letter to the Speaker of Parliament
Speaker of the National Assembly
The Honourable Mr Max Sisulu, MP
P. O. Box 15
Cape Town
8000

COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY (CGE) ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13

Section 181(5) of the Constitution of South Africa, read together with
section 40(1)(e) of the Public Finance Management Act of 1999, requires
all state Institutions supporting constitutional democracy to report their
respective activities and performance of their functions to the National
Assembly at least once a year.

The Commission for Gender Equality would like to table this report to the
National Assembly in accordance with these legal requirements.
Accordingly, we respectfully place for your receipt and consideration
bound hard copies of the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31
March 2013.
We trust that you will find the report both informative and interesting.

Yours sincerely,

Keketso Maema
Chief Executive Officer

Commission for Gender Equality
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Foreword from the

Chairperson
Once again it is our pleasure to present the Annual
Report by the current group of Commissioners, as
required by Section 181 (3) of the Constitution Act (108 of
1996) to the honourable Speaker of the National Assembly,
Mr M Sisulu, and to His Excellency the State President of the
Republic of South Africa, Mr J G Zuma, as required by the
Commission for Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996.
Furthermore Section 15 (2) of the Commission for Gender Equality Act
states that the Commission shall report to the President at least once every year on its activities
and the achievement of its objectives, and the President shall cause such report to be tabled
promptly in Parliament: provided that the Commission may at any time submit any other report
to the President and Parliament.
It is with extreme pain that one has to acknowledge that, despite the highly lauded
Commitment to gender of equality in our Constitution, South African society remains deeply
entrenched in patriarchy. This manifests in ongoing gender-based violence, which disgraces
us in all our media; there are still many incidents of abuse directed by men against women
and children, with the most vulnerable being the girl-child. At the heart of this pathological
male behaviour lie inherent gender discrimination the values and unequal rights that
continue to be afforded to the boy-child.
We should all unite in the fight against all forms of discrimination; the abuse and oppression of
women, girl children, LGBTIs people, elderly women, and disabled women perpetuated by in
order to completely root out the scourge of gender-based violence.
So deep is the cultural practice of male superiority, that those guilty men have come to believe
that they are superior to women and that theirs is a divine right to dominate.
Their voices echo down the
years – despite 50 000 women chanting in 1956,
Wathint'Abafazi Wathint'imbokodo! (now you have touched a woman you have struck a
rock). All sectors of society, with government at the helm but closely aligned with the private
sector, must:
• Act in concert
• Act decisively, and
• Act now.
Action now will give credence to the same 1956 clarion call from the lips of all South African
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I am particularly disturbed by the inadequate resources that are allocated to gender equality
and women’s empowerment structures such as the CGE. Overcoming these challenges
requires that the state substantially increases the allocation of funds to the fundamental
transformation of the landscape of empowerment, culture, education, and law enforcement.
Failure to do so will fail the legacy of the Women’s March, and could be deemed to be
unconstitutional.
In this perennial quest for a society free from gender inequality, I am pleased to welcome the
new commissioners that have been appointed to the CGE, and the enduring efforts of both
management and staff. The organisation continues to strengthen owing to the combined
efforts of the commissioners, CEO and secretariat.
It is much to be regretted that five of these commissioners were given two-year terms and will
not be able to defend our next Annual Report, as their terms came to an end on 31 May 2013.
All nine commissioners work as a team in pursuing an active programme in pursuit of gender
equality.
The CGE has made substantial progress, as recorded in the section under performance
management in this Report. We remain confident, however, that based on our mutual
understanding with the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee on Women, Children and People
with Disabilities, engagements with other human rights constitutional entities, the Ministry for
Women, Children and People with Disabilities, The Office on Institutions Supporting Democracy
(OISD), the Office of the Deputy Speaker and civil society at large, that the CGE is making
significant contributions eradicating the scourge of gender inequalities.
If we remember that the year 2014, will see both the general election and the celebration of
20 years of freedom, CGE hopes that all political parties will heed the call for the equal
representation of women in their party lists and during the actual allocation of parliamentary
seats. It is our conviction that all South Africans should respect and promote the AU Decade
for Women and ensure that the SADC Protocol on Gender and Development is promoted and
enforced at all times.
I am also happy to announce that CGE, in partnership with other human rights bodies, such as
Parliament and institutions supporting democracy, is on course in terms of advancing
constitutional democracy in South Africa. In terms of fulfilling the requirements of the
Commission for Gender Equality Act and the Constitution, the CGE has performed excellently
its duty of promoting, developing and attaining respect for gender equality. Our Annual Report
is a testimony to this.
I wish to thank all our partners for assisting us to ensure that the CGE delivers on its mandate.
These partners include parliamentary structures (including provincial legislatures), Civil Society
Organisations (CSOs), constitutional bodies, statutory bodies, institutions supporting democracy,
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government departments, houses of traditional leadership, the CGE family, individuals,
complainants, faith-based organisations, the private sector, United Nations Agencies, the
media, like-minded organisations from the continent, and CGE service providers for ensuring
that CGE delivers on its mandate.
Sithi kini Nonke unwele olude nikwenze nakwabanye.

Mfanozelwe Shozi
Chairperson

Front Row: Ms N. Loyilane, Chairperson M. Shozi, Dr N. Maphazi
Back Row: Prof A . Gouws, Ms S. Stevens-Maziya, Ms L. Nare, Deputy Chairperson T. Mpumlwana,
Ms J. Hicks, Dr W. Mqoqi.

Commission for Gender Equality

7

A society free from gender oppression and inequality

3

Overview by the

Chief Executive Officer
This Annual Report of the Commission for Gender Equality
opportunely coincides with a period of heightened
publicity on gender equality. The year has seen many
South African women appointed to leadership positions on
the continent and internationally. These developments are
highly applauded and further encourage the efforts of the
Commission.
However, juxtaposed against these positive developments, the deep
scar of gender inequality persists on the soul of our society. Society cannot
– and dare not – continue to destroy itself through the unabated violence directed at women
and the girl-child. Our newspapers, television and other media constantly reflect the results of
the deeply ingrained patriarchy that still rules, and which manifests itself in violence because
men believe that they have dominion over women and that women belong to them.
If we are to realise the constitutional vision of a society free of gender inequality, there remains
much to be done.
The CGE has drawn up a comprehensive set of activities to guide its performance, some of
which are highlighted below and which are directed at our core constitutional mandate to
attain gender equality.
Legislative framework
The CGE has been an active participant in the legislative processes involved in gender-based
legislation. These included:
• The Women’s Empowerment and Gender Equality Bill
• The Criminal Law Sexual Offences and Related Matters Amendment Bill
• The Family Law and Marriage Legislation reform.
Complaint handling
There has been an increase in the number of complaints received by the CGE, particularly
those concerning gender-based violence. The lengthy time delays within the judicial process
continue to hinder the speedy resolution of these matters. We have, nevertheless, been able
to provide increasing support and assistance at our walk-in centres and clinics.
Employment Equity hearings
It is disturbing to note that the evidence from these hearings continues to show that, despite
the laws in place to promote gender equality in the workplace, the rate of gender
transformation in the workplace remains unsatisfactory.

Commission for Gender Equality
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Court monitoring
This has focused on Domestic Violence Courts, Family Courts and Equality Courts. It remains a key
challenge to speed up the judicial process, to make courts more efficient and gender friendly, and to
ensure a reduction in the number of cases struck off the court roll.
Public education and information
Education remains the primary means to change behaviour and attitudes towards gender equality.
Dialogues with stakeholders in various parts of the country were held on:
•
•
•
•

Sex work
Maternity protection
Women in political parties
16 Days of Activism campaign and the launch of the 365 days National Action Plan.

Research
The work of the CGE is underpinned by research to provide a solid foundation upon which strategic
policy reviews affecting gender equality are based. The following areas were covered:
• The monitoring and evaluation of the implementation of the Victims Charter
• The monitoring and evaluation of the 365 Days Programme of Activism To Eliminate
Violence Against Women and Child Abuse
• The launch of the Gender Barometer and the training of public-sector institutions at national,
provincial and local government levels
• The launch of a Policy Dialogue Programme and provincially-based programmes to disseminate
information and address gender practices peculiar to each province.
I am pleased to report that we have been able to fully or substantially achieve these targets. The CGE
has made significant progress in strengthening its organisational capacity, with the exception of
Information Technology. This was mainly due to limited human resources in the ICT department, which will
receive more attention in the year ahead.
I conclude by welcoming the appointment of the new commissioners, and appreciating the guidance
and direction received from all the commissioners in furthering the CGE’s vision and strengthening it.
Thanks are also due to staff members, whose sterling efforts demonstrated a unity of purpose in pulling
together and doing their best to achieve our goals, hopes and aspirations.
As always, the engagement and support of the Ministry for Women, Children and People with Disabilities
is highly appreciated.

Keketso Maema
Chief Executive Officer

Commission for Gender Equality
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4 Governance
4.1 COMPOSITION OF COMMISSION
The Commission for Gender Equality Act, No 39 of 1996, provides for a maximum of 12
commissioners, consisting of no fewer than two part-time commissioners and a maximum of
seven full-time. The Commission has nine commissioners, two of them part-time and seven
full-time.
The commissioners are:
Mr M Shozi
Chairperson and Full-time Commissioner
Ms T Mpumlwana
Deputy Chairperson and Full-time Commissioner
Ms L Nare
Part-time Commissioner
Ms J Hicks
Full-time Commissioner
Ms N Loyilane
Full-time Commissioner
Ms S Stevens-Maziya Full-time Commissioner
Dr W Mgoqi
Full-time Commissioner
Dr N Maphazi
Full-time Commissioner
Prof A Gouws
Part-time Commissioner
Commissioners exercise governance in terms of an approved Commissioners’ Handbook, the
main purpose of which is to enable them to provide guidance and regulation in executing their
responsibilities, interfacing with the secretariat, and implementing their public office as
commissioners.
The Plenary of Commissioners is the final decision-making body of the Commission for Gender
Equality (CGE). It sits four times a year and considers reports from management and
commissioners. Plenary meetings are supplemented by tele-plenary meetings, which are
convened at the discretion of the chairperson and any commissioner who motivates the
chairperson to convene such a meeting, to consider urgent matters. Extraordinary plenary is
called between plenary meetings to consider issues that might arise that would need the
plenary’s attention. The number and date/s of plenary meetings that took place during the
financial year are listed in the following table:
PLENARY

EXTRA-ORDINARY
PLENARY

3

TELE-PLENARY
3

5
25 - 27 July 2012
23 - 25 October 2012
13 - 15 February 2013

Commission for Gender Equality

04 June 2012
20 June 2012
07 September 2012
12 December 2012
18 March 2013
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14 Aug 2012
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4.2. THE ROLE OF COMMITTEES
The CGE has established committees to enable commissioners to ensure the effective
implementation of objectives and lend support, as required. The committees’ objectives are
listed below.
a) To provide input, advice and assistance in addressing strategic and policy issues and
challenges
b) To identify significant emerging issues affecting the implementation of programmes and
develop solutions to these issues for plenary approval
c) To make recommendations concerning their theme or function for the purpose of further
developing the CGE’s policies relating to this theme
d) To formulate the integration of committee issues into CGE’s strategic planning, to guide the
implementation of designated projects, and to monitor and evaluate CGE activities around
this theme
e) To report back regularly to plenary
f) To table matters that need the decision of the Commission
g) To deliberate on issues referred to the committee by plenary and provide recommendations
to plenary
h) To monitor project implementation, budgeting and expenditure against the budget.

4.3 MEETINGS HELD IN 2012/2013
The following table shows the numbers and dates of the committees’ meetings held during the
period under review.

COMMITTEE

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD

DATES

Strategic plan,
monitoring,
evaluation and
Annual Report

5

11 Sept 2012
21 Sept 2012
13 Nov 2013
25 Feb 2013
18 March 2013

Legal and complaints

4

04 Sept 2012
18 Oct 2012
14 Nov 2012
08 Feb 2013

Human resources

3

18 Oct 2012
07 Dec 2012
28 Jan 2013

Commission for Gender Equality
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COMMITTEE

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD

DATES

Finance

3

21 Nov 2012
07 Feb 2013
13 Mar 2013

IT and Communications

2

18 Sept 2012
12 Nov 2012

Good Governance

3

21 June 2012
19 Dec 2012
06 Feb 2013

Education & Research

3

02 Feb 2013
20 Sept 2012
24 Jan 2013

4.4 COMMISSIONERS’ ACTIVITIES INVOLVING STAKEHOLDERS
A broad range of stakeholders were included in the Commission’s activities. These are
described in the following paragraphs.
POLITICAL PARTIES:
1. African National Congress
2. United Democratic Movement
3. Inkatha Freedom Party
4. Congress Of the People
5. Democratic Alliance
6. African People’s Convention
OTHER INSTITUTIONS:
1. Forum of Institutions Supporting Democracy
2. Equality Review Committee
3. All Chapter Nine institutions
4. Sonke Gender Justice Network
5. Gender Links
6. Foundation for Human Rights
7. Kwanele Enuf is Enuf
8. National Gender Machinery
9. Provincial Gender Machinery
10. Progressive Women’s Movement South Africa (PWMSA)
11. Moral Regeneration Movement

Commission for Gender Equality
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12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

Men’s Forum
Men’s Dialogues
South African Women In Dialogue (SAWID)
Women’s Development Foundation
National Social Cohesion
Sex Workers Education and Advocacy Task Force (SWEAT)
Universities: University of KwaZulu-Natal, University of Western Cape, University of Free State,
Vaal University of Technology and University of Fort Hare
19. Confederation of South African Trade Unions
20. South African Democratic Teachers Union
21. Land Bank
22. South African Football Association
23. Women’s Legal Centre
24. Legal Resource Centre.
MEDIA:
1. SABC radio and TV
2. etv
3. Community radio stations
4. Print Media Institutions
RELIGIOUS AND TRADITIONAL ORGANISATIONS:
1. Nazareth Baptist Church
2. Western Cape Council of Churches
3. National House of Traditional Leaders
4. Traditional Council, KZN
5.
Rhema Church
6. Christian Church Leaders
7. Evangelical Lutheran Church
GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS, LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURES:
1. Ministry of Women, Children and People with Disabilities
2. Municipalities
3. Provincial legislatures
4. Department of International Relations and Cooperation
5. National Intelligence
6. South African Local Government Agency (SALGA)
7. National Prosecuting Authority (NPA)
8. Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs
9. SAPS and all Metro Police Departments
10. Department of Human Settlements
11. Department of Mineral Affairs
12. Department of Justice and Constitutional Development
13. National Treasury.
14. Department of Higher Education and Training

Commission for Gender Equality
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INTERNATIONAL FORUMS:
1. 11th International Conference of Human Rights Institutions – Amman, Jordan
2. 57th Session of the Commission on Status of Women (CSW), New York
3. Hosted the Namibian Standing Committee in Namibian Parliament
4. Presented to the Nigerian Human Rights Commission during their visit to the South
African Human Rights Commission
5. Presented to the Rwandan Human Rights Commission during their visit to the South
African Human Rights Commission
6. Commonwealth Women Parliamentarians
7. 5th UN State Parties Conference on the Convention on the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities, New York
8. 4th Women in Politics Africa: Women in Political Power Driving the Millennium
Development Goals (MDGs)
9. Namibia Gender and Election Commission.

PARLIAMENT:
1. Office on Institutions Supporting Democracy
2. Select Committee Portfolio Committee on Women, Children and People with
Disabilities
3. Multi-party caucuses

Commission for Gender Equality

14

A society free from gender oppression and inequality

5 Executive Authority Structure

CHAIRPERSON
OFFICE MANAGER

DEPUTY
CHAIRPERSON
SPOKESPERSON

Under the CGE Act, the Commission is
composed of a mix of full and part-time
commissioners, with a chairperson and
deputy chairperson, which forms the
Executive Authority in terms of the Public
Finance Management Act (PFMA). The
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is an invited
ex officio member of the Commission in
plenary meetings. The CEO is the
accounting officer under the PFMA,
accountable to the commissioners for the
day-to-day functioning of the organisation.
The CEO appoints staff to support these
operations
and
functions
of
the
Commission.

COMMISSIONERS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Commission for Gender Equality
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ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND SECRETARIAT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

CEO

CEO

COO

COO

DIRECTOR
Human
Resource

CFO

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

Policy &
Research

Public
Education &
Information

Legal
Services

MANAGER

MANAGER

PROVINCIAL

Internal
Audit

IT

COORDINATORS
X9

Note: Each provincial office is managed by a provincial coordinator with
support staff. The primary purpose of the provincial office is to:
•
•
•
•

promote gender education at provincial level
create ease of access for all people across the geographical and rural
spread of South Africa
facilitate gender reporting and redress through outreach programmes
solicit provincially based gender data that informs the strategic
direction and research of the Commission.
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6 Mandate, Vision and Mission
The legislative mandate of the Commission derives from the following Acts.
6.1 THE CONSTITUTION OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA, ACT 108 OF 1996
The CGE is a state institution established under the first Constitution of the Republic of South
Africa in 1996 to strengthen constitutional democracy. The CGE is independent, subject to the
constitution and law, and accountable to the National Assembly. A positive constitutional duty
is placed upon all other organs of state to promote the effectiveness of the CGE.
The Bill of Rights is the cornerstone of South African constitutional democracy. Herein is
enshrined the rights of all people to the democratic values of human dignity, equality and
freedom; the state is required to respect, protect, promote and fulfil these human rights.
The CGE’s obligation to strengthen constitutional democracy is focused on the attainment of
gender equality in all spheres of life. This recognises that the prevailing environment of gender
inequality requires positive actions, by both the state and private sectors, if this equality is to be
attained. Establishing a constitutional institution with the sole purpose of achieving gender
equality is recognition by the constitution-makers that gender equality would not be achieved
if it was merely treated as a generalised human right.
Section 187(1) of the Constitution of South Africa reads: “The Commission for Gender Equality
must promote respect for gender equality and the protection, development and attainment
of gender equality.” The CGE is a catalyst in pursuit of this aim. Section 187(2) grants the CGE
“the power, as regulated by national legislation, necessary to perform its functions, including
the power to monitor, investigate, research, educate, lobby, advise and report on issues
concerning gender equality.”
In addition the CGE has the power to institute proceedings in terms of Section 20(1)(f) of the
Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act 4, 2000 (PEPUDA).
6.2 THE COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY ACT 39 OF 1996
Section 11 of the CGE Act provides that the Commission:
(a) shall monitor and evaluate policies and practices of organs of state at any level, statutory
bodies or functionaries, public bodies and authorities, and private businesses, enterprises
and institutions, in order to promote gender equality and may make recommendations
that the Commission deems necessary
(b) shall develop, conduct or manage information programmes and education programmes,
to foster public understanding of matters pertaining to the promotion of gender equality
and the role and activities of the Commission

Commission for Gender Equality
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(c) shall evaluate any Act of Parliament, any system of personal and family law or custom,
any system of indigenous law customs or practices, or any other law in force at the
commencement of this Act, or any law proposed by Parliament or any other legislature
after the commencement of this Act, affecting or likely to affect gender equality or the
status of women, and make recommendations to Parliament or such other legislature with
regard thereto
(d) may recommend to Parliament or any other legislature the adoption of new legislation
which would promote gender equality and the status of women
(e) shall investigate any gender-related issues of its own accord or on receipt of a complaint,
and shall endeavour to resolve any dispute or rectify any act or omission by mediation,
conciliation or negotiation provided that the Commission may at any stage refer any
matter to:
•

the Human Rights Commission to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution and the law

•

the Public Protector to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution or

•

any other authority, whichever is appropriate

(f) shall, as far as is practicable, maintain close liaison with institutions, bodies or authorities
with similar objectives to the Commission, in order to foster common policies and practices
and to promote cooperation in relation to the handling of complaints in cases of
overlapping jurisdiction or other appropriate instances
(g) shall liaise and interact with any organisation which actively promotes gender equality and
other sectors of civil society to further the objectives of the Commission
(h) shall monitor the compliance with international conventions, international covenants and
international charters, acceded to or ratified by the Republic, relating to the object of the
Commission
(i)

shall prepare and submit reports to Parliament pertaining to any such convention,
covenant or charter relating to the objectives of the Commission

(j)

may conduct research or cause research to be conducted to further the objectives of the
Commission

(k) may consider such recommendations, suggestions and requests concerning the promotion
of gender equality as it may receive from any source.
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6.3

OUR VISION
A society free from all forms of gender oppression and inequality.

OUR MISSION
To promote, protect, monitor and evaluate gender equality through research, public
education, policy development, legislative initiatives, effective monitoring and litigation.

OUR VALUES
Our values are anchored in the supremacy of the constitution and the rule of law, and
we perform all our functions with an ethos grounded in the following values.
•
•
•
•

•

Independence – we impartially perform our duties without fear or favour, mindful of
the independence of our office.
Professionalism – we timeously execute our responsibilities with the utmost care and
diligence responsive to the society we serve.
Accountability – we always give an account of our actions and decisions.
Ethical behaviour – we maintain high standards of
o trustworthiness and honesty
o respect and empathy
o integrity
Teamwork – we support and work in collaboration with our colleagues, state organs
and civil society to maximise the attainment of our objectives.

Commission for Gender Equality
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7 Strategic Objectives
The CGE has translated its constitutional mandate and
obligation into four strategic objectives to guide the
organisation. These form the organisational framework for
proper functioning and governance and the strategic
pillars of the vision for the attainment of gender equality,
in a society free from all forms of gender oppression and
inequality.
Strategic Objective No. 1:
To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling
legislative framework that promotes the attainment of
gender equality.
Strategic Objective No. 2:
To protect and promote gender equality by engaging
with relevant stakeholders to educate and raise
awareness on issues of gender equality, challenge
patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes, and take action
against infringements of gender rights through the
implementation of appropriate redress.
Strategic Objective No. 3:
To monitor state compliance with regional and
international conventions, covenants and charters which
have been acceded to or ratified by the Republic,
relating to the objects of the Commission.
Strategic Objective No. 4:
To build an effective, efficient and sustainable institution
that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on gender equality.
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8 Legal Framework
8.1 POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE SUBMISSIONS
In alignment with the mandate and strategic objective ‘to ensure the creation and
implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the attainment of gender
equality’, the CGE constantly analyses existing and proposed legislation from a gender-equality
perspective. This is done to strengthen constitutional democracy and to promote the realisation
of gender equality enshrined in the constitution and Bill of Rights. Submissions are made to
Parliament and other legislation-making organs to improve the legislative framework, with the
understanding that gender equality is pivotal in nation-building.
8.1.1 Protection of State Information Bill [B6B-2010] 19 April 2012
This Bill deals with the protection of state information from alteration, destruction, loss and
unlawful disclosure, including the repeal of the Protection of Information Act of 1982. The Bill
was highly contested by the media and certain NGOs, in the belief that there was an
infringement of the right to freedom of expression, association and access to state information
entrenched in the Bill of Rights.
The Commission for Gender Equality considered aspects of the legality and engendering of the
bill and made proposals for improvement.
8.1.2 Family Law and Marriage Legislation, Law Reform Discussion Paper 130, 12 April 2012
This paper included a draft bill that sought to repeal and amend redundant, obsolete and
unconstitutional legislation and provisions in the legislation as administered by the Department
of Justice and Constitutional Affairs.
The CGE supported the proposed reforms to the:
• Matrimonial Affairs Act of 1953
• Matrimonial Property Act of 1984
• Divorce Act of 1979
• Mediation in Certain Divorce Matters Act of 1987
• Domestic Violence Act of 1998
• Recognition of Customary Marriages Act of 1998.
8.1.3 Transformation of the judiciary in the developmental South African State, discussion
document, 3 May 2012
This discussion document on the transformation of the judiciary in the developmental South
African State highlights reforms that have taken place and provides an overview of the
transformative initiatives currently underway within the South African administration of justice.
A distinction is made in the document between transformation of the judicial system and
transformation of the judiciary. It also locates the judiciary as the central focus in an attempt
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to transform the system. This transformation agenda is in keeping with national goals that aim
to transform the state and society, which is expected to achieve the democratic values
enshrined in the constitution.
The CGE supported the transformation policy and submitted that actions should be taken to
prioritise and realise the commitments of PEPUDA. Concern was raised that non-compliance
undermined the right to gender equality and proposals were made to address these
shortcomings.
8.1.4

Films and Publications Board, Guidelines for Classiﬁcation of Film, Games and certain
Publications, 16 May 2012

The CGE made recommendations to the Films and Publications Board on draft guidelines used
to classify films, games and publications before they are distributed. The recommendation was
made to include classifications for ‘gender analysis’, ‘gender equality’ and ‘gender’.
8.1.5

Criminal Law Sexual Offences and Related Matters Amendment Bill, Portfolio Committee
on Justice and Constitutional Development, 28 May 2012

The CGE supported the proposed amendments to the Sexual Offences Act 32 of 2007. These
amendments are designed to protect men and women and remove the ambiguities
contained in Sections 11, 17 and 23 of the Act.
8.1.6

The Constitutional Review Committee on the Annual Review of the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa, 1 June 2012

The CGE proposed the inclusion of a specified category for the disabled in Section 9 (the
equality clause), and an amendment to Section 132 of the constitution to embrace gender.
8.1.7

Basic Conditions of Employment Amendment Bill [B12-2012], 30 June 2012

This bill seeks to amend the Basic Conditions of Employment Act (BCEA) to prohibit employers
from requiring employees to make payments to their respective employees in order to secure
employment.
The CGE supported the bill and made gender-related recommendations aimed at aligning
the BCEA more closely to Section 9 of the constitution.
8.1.8

Labour Relations Amendment Bill [B16-2012], 30 June 2012

The Labour Relations Amendment Bill seeks to amend the Labour Relations Act, 1995, so as to
ensure that unions obtain a ballot prior to calling a strike or picket and to increase regulation
over essential services.
The CGE cautioned against amendments which would exacerbate the high levels of
unemployment and recommended a revision to Section 70 A(c) for the inclusion of a genderrepresentative committee.
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8.1.9

Draft Women’s Empowerment and Gender Equality Bill, 25 July 2012

This new legislation was introduced by the Ministry for Women, Children and People with
Disabilities. The primary purpose is to mainstream gender equality and enforce compliance with
existing legislation. The CGE supported the bill and proposed certain revisions to enhance it.
8.1.10 White paper on families, 9 November 2012
The Department for Social Development issued a white paper which seeks to strengthen the
family as a social unit. The CGE supported the proposed initiative and recommended gender
mainstreaming.
8.1.11 Commission for Gender Equality Amendment Bill [B 36-2012] 28 November 2012
The bill results from the recommendations of the ad hoc committee on the Commission for
Gender Equality Forensic Investigation in 2010. The CGE made recommendations on
weaknesses in the CGE Act.
8.1.12 Submission to the NCOP – Select Committee on Security and Constitutional
Development on the Traditional Courts Bill ( B 1-2012) 12 September 2012
Developing a traditional courts bill is an obligation in terms of the SADC protocol and is also
provided for in the constitution. However, it must be borne in mind that the traditional courts bill
must pass constitutional muster to the extent where it protects the rights of both men and
women.
8.1.13 Submission on the Draft Children’s Amendment Bill – 2013 to the National Assembly
The CGE welcomes the Children’s Amendment Bill and takes this opportunity to thank the
members and committee concerned for the opportunity to make recommendations herein.
8.2

COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT

In line with our strategic objectives ‘to take action against infringements of gender rights’ and
‘the implementation of appropriate redress’, managing complaints of violations of gender
rights and determining appropriate redress for the complainant and sanction for the
transgressors is an important function. The CGE receives complaints from the public, referrals
from the Human Rights Commission and the Public Protector, in addition to initiating
investigations on its own accord into systemic gender-rights violations.
During the year under review there was an increase in the number of new complaints received,
particularly in the second half of the year. An analysis of the complaints reveals violations in:
• domestic violence
• maintenance and financial support
• estate claims
• gender-based violence and sexual discrimination.
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The following table indicates the number of complaints received during the year.
Nature of Complaint

GP

LP

WC

MP

NW

FS

KZN

EC

NC

TOTAL

Gender Discrimination

3

3

6

0

0

6

12

0

5

35

Domestic Violence

1

3

0

5

0

2

1

4

5

21

Maintenance

2

2

0

10

0

13

0

7

9

43

Divorce

6

1

3

0

0

3

0

2

7

22

Custody & access

3

2

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

9

Estate

4

1

0

14

0

9

0

0

2

30

Gender-Based Violence

0

0

4

0

0

0

9

9

1

23

Sexual Harassment

2

1

2

0

3

1

2

0

1

12

Labour

0

0

3

31

0

3

0

1

3

41

Unlawful Eviction

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

2

5

Claim for Restitution

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Tradition/Culture

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

3

4

Others

23

5

4

18

1

7

4

15

17

94

Total

44

18

22

78

4

51

28

39

55

339

The provinces with the highest incidents of gender violations are:
• Free State
• Mpumalanga
• Northern Cape
• KwaZulu-Natal
• Eastern Cape
The following table indicates the total number of complaints that were handled by the Commission.
Brought
forward
files from
previous
quarter

Opened

Closed

Pending

Gauteng

23

44

38

29

Limpopo

18

18

18

18

Western Cape

26

22

30

18

Mpumalanga

22

78

43

57

North West

7

4

2

9

Free State

59

51

35

75

KwaZulu-Natal

35

28

21

42

Eastern Cape

21

39

22

38

Northern Cape

45

55

60

40
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In addition to cases opened for complaints received, there were a high number of matters
that were addressed telephonically and via on-site consultations and interactions. These are
shown in the following table.
CONSULTATIONS

1st qtr

2nd qtr

3rd qtr

4th qtr

TOTAL

Gauteng

6

41

22

17

86

Limpopo

0

28

32

43

103

Western Cape

0

9

1

1

11

Mpumalanga

0

0

5

10

15

North West

4

6

2

5

17

Free State

14

11

15

8

48

KwaZulu-Natal

3

7

2

5

17

Eastern Cape

18

20

25

18

81

Northern Cape

1

0

10

1

12

TOTAL

46

122

114

108

390

8.3 LITIGATION
The legal department continues to have the following matters under litigation.
Sehlare Royal Council & Ressie Glory Chiloane vs Premier of Mpumalanga & Nkotobola
Chiloane, case no 39737/2010
This matter has been in the North Gauteng High Court as an application for withdrawal of
recognition of Nkotobola Chiloane as Inkosi and recognition of Glory Chiloane as the rightful
heir to the throne of the Sehlare Tribal Authority in Mpumalanga. CGE have been admitted as
amicus curiae, and the matter is soon to go on trial.
Modjadji Florah Mayelane vs Mphephu Maria Ngwenyama and another, case no CCT57/12
This matter is an application to the Constitutional Court from the Supreme Court of Appeal, on
the validity of a customary marriage based on Section 7(6) of the Recognition of Customary
Marriages Act. CGE has been admitted as amicus curiae with the Legal Resource Centre as
briefing attorneys. The matter was heard on 20 November 2012 when judgement was reserved.
During February 2013, the Constitutional Court issued further directions and the attorneys have
filed papers with regard thereto. The matter is pending.
Nomaxhosa Sigcawu vs Mpendulo Sigcawu and others, Eastern Cape High Court
This concerns a dispute and claim of chieftainship in terms of the Xhosa lineage. CGE have
briefed attorneys and counsel.
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8.4 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY HEARINGS
Public hearings on the implementation of, and compliance with, the gender-equality provisions
of the Employment Equity Act (EEA) by public- and private-sector employers were conducted
in Northern Cape, Free State, Limpopo, Mpumalanga, Gauteng and Eastern Cape.
The evidence provided continues to show that despite laws to promote gender equality in the
workplace, the rate of gender transformation remains unsatisfactory.

8.5 COURT MONITORING
The concerns of the monitoring of courts focused on maintenance complaints and the murder
and rape of minor children and elderly people. There are a high number of applications for
protection orders each year. It is a matter of concern that many orders are struck off the roll.

8.5.1 Domestic violence courts
In Domestic Violence Courts legal officers need to be appointed to assist those people
applying for protection orders.
The following observations were made by the CGE in selected domestic violence courts.
• This court is generally perceived as a refuge for abused women, which hampers its access
by abused men.
• Domestic violence is a serious concern and large numbers of applications are received
each day.
• The principles of the Victim Empowerment Programme (VEP) are not being adhered to;
victims and their families are not advised of their right to access the essential services
provided under the programme. The VEP usually provides support services through nongovernmental organisations (NGOs) which include the provision of alternative
accommodation, transport, trauma counselling, court preparation and, where possible,
pro bono legal assistance.
The CGE has engaged with civil society, other Chapter 9 institutions and court officials in order
to raise awareness through advocacy and lobbying campaigns. The aim of the initiative was
to sensitise officials employed within the criminal justice system of their obligations to create a
victim-friendly approach to complainants who are victims of crime.
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8.5.2 Family courts
The CGE observed that the pace of orders being granted is extremely slow and lodged a
complaint in this regard. This resulted in orders that the CGE was involved in being expedited.

8.5.3 Equality courts
Training in the Mpumalanga Equality Court was found to be inadequate, and therefore service
in accordance with the prescribed time limits is compromised. There are no equality courts in
the Tonga and Nkomazi magisterial districts.
In Gauteng equality courts are not popular among legal practitioners. The reasons include the
inadequate marketing of equality courts, limited awareness among practitioners and the
public about its jurisdiction, and the absence of dedicated presiding officers and clerks of the
court.
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9 Public Education and Information
9.1 SEX WORK DIALOGUE
In April 2012 the CGE, in
collaboration with the National
Gender
Committee
of
COSATU, held a consultative
dialogue on the reform of sex
work legislation. Representatives from a range of institutions
attended, including SWEAT
and the Sisonke Sex Worker
Movement. The
dialogue
addressed matters of research,
the rights of sex workers and
violations of their human rights.
Responses to proposed legislative reform were discussed,
including arguments in favour
of the full decriminalisation of
sex work.

9.2 MATERNITY PROTECTION
The CGE commissioned research through the Legal Resources Centre (LRC) into maternity
protection legislation, in partnership with Gina Barbieri Attorneys, the LRC, the South African
Self-Employed Women’s Association and the South African Business Women’s Association. The CGE
undertook a series of provincial consultative dialogues on the findings of the research. These
dialogues with affected stakeholders provided inputs on which issues needed to engage
government and other key stakeholders. It was revealed that a broad range of working women are
affected by the lack of access to maternity benefits, including those women in:
• informal trade
• self-employment situations
• the informal economy
• the Arts
• cooperatives
• contractor contracts in the Extended Public Works Programme.
Key recommendations made included the following:
• Maternity benefits should be separated from the Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF).
• A maternity benefit fund should be established that women and men could contribute to
and benefit from.
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•

Additional legal research should be
undertaken to inform the development of
policy proposals.
There should be collaboration between the
CGE, COSATU, the ILO and the Department
for Women, Children and People with
Disabilities in the development of policy
recommendations and legislative enactment.
COSATU
should
facilitate
employer
consultations through the bargaining
councils.
Awareness must be raised and interventions
for working men and women mobilised.
The
state
should
ratify
the
ILO
Recommendation 191 that was made at the
Maternity Convention 183.

•

•

•
•

9.3 WOMEN IN POLITICAL PARTIES
The Commission, in partnership with the National Democratic Institute South Africa, (NDI-SA)
has initiated a project to assess the level of participation of women in political parties. The
intention is to strengthen the role and status of women in this sector. Specific programme
objectives have been formulated to support political parties in developing and implementing
recommendations for improving women’s political representation and participation, and to
bolster the capacity of women to compete for leadership positions in political parties.
The CGE has a mandate to interrogate the extent to which political parties are meeting their
equity targets and compel them to undertake measures to reach parity. Drawing on the NDI’s
tools, expertise and experience, political parties will be assisted to:
• develop oversight mechanisms
• identify challenges affecting women’s political participation
• design practical tools to measure progress in advancing women’s political participation
• implement recommendations for improving women’s representation within party structures.
The African National Congress (ANC), Congress of the People (COPE), Democratic Alliance
(DA), Independent Democrats (ID), Inkatha Freedom Party (IFP) and United Democratic
Movement (UDM) have been identified to participate in this project.
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9.4 16 DAYS OF ACTIVISM CAMPAIGN AND LAUNCH OF THE 365 DAYS NATIONAL ACTION PLAN
(NAP) REPORT
A campaign for the 16 Days of Activism was developed for implementation in provinces. The
expected outcomes are:
• to increase awareness of the role and functions of the CGE
• to strengthen partnerships and collaboration with NGOs and Community-based
Organisations (CBOs)
• to enable a coordinated response to address the abuse of women and children from faithbased organisations, traditional leaders and healers, and the business sector
• to strengthen the foundations for a more effective and rigorous implementation of the 365
Days NAP
• to encourage community involvement in initiatives to combat crimes against women and
children
• to provide a forum for the development of coordinated strategies
• to encourage government departments to mainstream gender equality at all levels of their
administration
• to call on government to prevent violence against women.
When the 365 Days NAP was launched, assessments were conducted and a stakeholder
consultation held to discuss the findings and recommendations of the assessment report. The
media strategy for the launch of the report included SABC 3 airtime programming for the 16
days. Interviews relating to activities during the 16 days were arranged to promote this.
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The United Nations has initiated a global campaign titled UNiTE to end violence against women.
Visual support for the campaign is shown by people wearing orange-coloured clothing on the
25th of each month, with orange symbolised as the colour of change. The campaign provides
clear suggestions on how governmental departments, civil organisations, business and individuals
can show support for the global initiative and take clear action in the fight against gender-based
violence.
The CGE officially launched support for the Orange
Campaign during the 16 Days of Activism.

Deputy Chairperson,
Ms T. Mpumlwana,
Commission for
Gender Equality,
and Ms K. Rama,
Gender Links.

Chairperson, Mr. M. Shozi and Ms. K. Maema,
Commission for Gender Equality.
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10 Research
The research function underpins the work of the CGE in providing a solid and informed basis
upon which strategic policy reviews affecting gender equality are developed. This research
approach enables the organisation to gather intelligent data which is then synthesised into
policy positions. Monitoring and evaluation is an integral part of this function.
The following research projects were undertaken during the financial year.
• Victims Charter: The monitoring and evaluation of the implementation of the Victims
Charter
• 365 Days NAP: The monitoring and evaluating of this programme
• Gender Barometer: The launch of the Gender Barometer and the training of public-sector
institutions at national, provincial and local government levels. Government departments
were identified and a web-based tool administered. An assessment report was developed
from the information received.
• Policy Dialogues: Policy briefs were developed and policy dialogues were held to engage
policy makers on the findings and recommendations of CGE reports.
The key developments and highlights of each of these projects are described in the following
paragraphs.
10.1 VICTIMS CHARTER REPORT 2012
The focus of this project was to monitor and assess the implementation of the Victims Charter,
emphasising the services rendered to victims of gender-based violence in line with the
prescribed standards of service provision outlined in the Charter. As part of the project, the
two departments of Health and Correctional Services were monitored and assessed.
Department of Health
•

•

It was found that Thuthuzela Care Centres perform valuable services in providing exclusive
services for victims of crime, but that they operate under conditions of severe shortage of
resources and the lack of adequate and appropriately trained healthcare professionals in
vital areas such as psychiatry, forensic medicine and counselling.
Significantly high levels of commitment and dedication were found among healthcare
professionals at healthcare facilities and the Thuthuzela Centres, despite the severe
shortage of resources.

The key challenge facing the Department of Health in implementing the Victims Charter was
the poor conditions at health care centres, specifically:
•

a lack of, or uneven distribution of, resources across the different provinces and healthcare
centres
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•

a lack of, or uneven distribution of, skilled healthcare professionals in the key area of forensic
medicine.

Department of Correctional Services
This department faced enormous challenges in its attempt to meet the needs of victims of
gender-based violence, particularly in terms of the functioning of parole boards across the
country. The study found that the department had a strong foundation of policies and
legislative frameworks to implement the Victims Charter. However, these are routinely
undermined by poor facilities and the severe lack of resources or the poor management
thereof. There were also capacity constraints to ensuring effective and meaningful victim
participation in parole hearings.
10.2 365 DAYS PROGRAMME REPORT
While last year’s study focused on the work of government departments in implementing the
NAP, during this financial year the study paid attention to assessing the work and role of civil
society organisations (CSOs) in implementing the NAP. The following issues were identified in
the study.
•
•
•
•
•
•

There was no evidence that CSOs generally recognised and accepted the responsibilities
allocated to them in the NAP.
Some CSOs did not locate their own programmes or programme objectives within the NAP.
There was limited evidence of ownership of the NAP among CSOs.
Coordinating structures were non-functional and ineffective, with CSOs feeling excluded
from overall processes and decisions.
There were no funding incentives for CSOs to pursue the objectives of the NAP.
CSOs believed strongly that there was a lack of political commitment by government to the
NAP.

Based on the findings, which indicate limited progress by government and CSOs in the
implementation of the NAP, there is a need to review the programme’s current plan of action,
and the allocations of roles and responsibilities.
10.3 GENDER BAROMETER REPORT
This project sought to assess progress in mainstreaming gender equality within state institutions
in South Africa. Two national departments (Public Works and Human Settlements), two similar
departments from each province, and two municipalities from each province were selected
for the study, which demonstrated poor response rates, particularly from the provinces and the
municipalities. This poor response indicates the many challenges that gender mainstreaming
is facing at these levels, and implies that there is a need for greater vigilance and intervention
by policy makers.
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Information from the provincial departments and municipalities revealed:
• Poor implementation of gender-mainstreaming policies, legislative frameworks and
programmes
• Poor administrative leadership commitment
• Limited resource allocations
• Lack of administrative accountability for poor performance
• General failure to prioritise gender mainstreaming in strategic plans, programmes and
projects
• Limited authority, resources and responsibilities allocated to gender focal persons, thus
undermining their role and contributions
• Continuing poor levels of representation of women in senior levels of management in
government, particularly at provincial and local government levels.
In the light of the inadequate levels of participation by municipalities in the Gender Barometer
project, in the new financial year the Research Department will pay greater attention to
provincial and national departments where gender mainstreaming activities are likely to be
better coordinated and more focused.

10.4 POLICY DIALOGUE PROGRAMME
This programme aimed to ensure the greater accessibility of CGE research outputs and policy
findings to policy makers at national, provincial and local government levels. A series of Policy
Dialogues were conducted nationally with the support of commissioners. The findings and
recommendations were presented to various policy makers. Policy Dialogues were conducted
on the following themes.
•
•
•
•
•

Gender mainstreaming in the water sector
Gender mainstreaming in the land reform programme
Gender equality in the national curriculum
Gender equality and widowhood
Gender mainstreaming in the private sector.

While there was significant participation by representatives of state institutions at national level
and in some provinces, there was a greater tendency for senior government officials and policy
makers to avoid participating in these Policy Dialogues. Many state institutions tended to assign
junior-level officials and gender focal persons to represent their departments in these events.
Consequently the CGE intends to focus greater efforts on direct Policy Dialogues with relevant
internal departmental leadership and management structures to ensure the accessibility of its
research and policy outputs to senior policy makers and implementers.
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11 Provincial Highlights
The provincial offices have engaged with numerous stakeholders during the period under
review and have collaborated effectively with NGOs, Faith-Based Organisations (FBOs),
Community Development Workers (CDWs) Chapter 9 institutions, and government departments
to ensure that the CGE’S mandate is realised and that gender equality is prioritised in an effort
to advance, promote and protect the rights of women and men.
In an attempt to broaden the visibility of the CGE in the provinces, various initiatives were
embarked upon. These are highlighted below.
11.1 EASTERN CAPE
The office collaborated with the South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC) and the
Public Protector on interventions during Human Rights Month. A human rights week was held
in the Mnquma municipality (Ngqamakhwe, Centane & Butterworth). The institutions shared
their respective mandates and focused on human rights.
Dialogues were conducted in Mthatha on the effectiveness of programmes implemented to
empower women in the province. It was noted that progress was slow and that the women
required training in financial and business skills.
Information on the mandate and functions of the CGE was shared using community radio
stations Forte FM, UCR and Ikamva lase Gcuwa, and a local newspaper.
11.2 FREE STATE
The Free State dedicated its efforts to discussions relating to Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgendered and Inter-sexed individuals (LGBTIs) and conducted dialogues and information
sessions on human trafficking.
The office has established good working relationships with community radio stations in the
province and hosted frequent talks on their various programmes to highlight the plight of
women in gender-based violence and also make men aware that they need to change their
attitudes towards women.
A gender-based violence workshop was held where CGE partnered with the Department of
Roads and Transport and the Department of the Premier to highlight the scourge of this
violence. Stakeholders, such as NGOs and the South African Police, were also consulted about
how they are best able to service the communities.
A Men’s Dialogue was held in Henneman, where young men and the churches raised their
voices on poverty and unemployment, and the role that churches can play in trying to boost
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the morale of young men in the province. The issue of initiation schools and the impact these
have had on today’s society was also highlighted.
Around Women's Month the CGE held information sessions to which financial institutions were
invited to also assist in boosting the status of women and how such women can be helped to
start their own businesses and be guided on their road to financial freedom.
11.3 GAUTENG
A seminar was held on the mandate of the CGE. Other interventions conducted during this
period relate to issues of gender-based violence and presentations on matters requested by
different state institutions.
Interventions were held on gender-based violence in schools at Forest Hill Secondary and Holy
Family College. The education officer made a presentation on sexual harassment at the
Department of Community Safety.
11.4 KWAZULU-NATAL
A key challenge for gender equality in KZN is arranged marriages of young girls, either
through the traditional practice of ukuthwala or by the Nazareth Baptist Church’s ukuhlala
ebhentshini. The CGE has intervened with the help of the Department of Social Development,
the SAPS and the NPA. They are currently seeking collaborative partnerships with the House of
Traditional Leaders and the Nazareth Baptist Church to combat this practice.
This year KZN increased its public education through the media. The provincial officials featured
in Morning Live (SABC 2), numerous community-based radio stations, local newspapers, and
also the Agence France Press (French-based television station).
11.5 LIMPOPO
The CGE, in collaboration with Capricorn FET and the SA Human Rights Commission (SAHRC)
conducted a three-day event. The students were addressed on issues relating to genderbased violence and human trafficking.
The office also made a presentation on socioeconomic rights from a gender perspective in
collaboration with the SAHRC. A workshop on gender mainstreaming with the Department of
Agriculture was also held.
Activities in Limpopo included a dialogue on access to basic needs and the effectiveness of
empowerment programmes. Two information sessions were held on the mandate and the
functions of the CGE in Giyani and Thohoyandou, and three exhibitions increased awareness
of the CGE.
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11.6 MPUMALANGA
The provincial officials conducted information sessions on culture, religion and tradition,
customary marriages, the Maintenance Act, gender-based violence, teenage pregnancy,
HIV/AIDS, widowhood, inheritance, and maternity benefits for self-employed women.
In partnership with the SAHRC, the CGE presented the findings of its Water Study, and
conducted public hearings on water and sanitation. The discussions showed that the issue of
water and sanitation is still a challenge, particularly in deep rural areas.
The provincial office hosts an annual men’s summit. This year’s summit indicated a need to
collaborate with SALGA, the House of Traditional Leaders, and Sonke Gender Justice, with the
intention of replicating this event in other districts.
The office also conducted a consultative and accountability session with all relevant
stakeholders in the province. The aim of the session was to open points of entry for all
stakeholders and interest groups to strategically engage with the CGE on the implementation
of its functions and to strengthen networking and collaboration.
11.7 NORTHERN CAPE
The office managed to strengthen partnerships and collaboration with relevant NGOs and
CBOs, including those that target and involve men and boys, for prevention and rehabilitation,
faith-based organisations, traditional leaders and healers, as well as the business sector, in
crafting a coordinated response to address the abuse of women and children.
The CGE mandate afforded a platform to encourage community involvement in initiatives to
combat crimes against women and children through different dialogues and information
awareness sessions.
A gender-based dialogue was held with the Magareng Municipality, owing to the high
prevalence of gender-based violence in that area. This initiated the establishment of
neighbourhood watch teams with the SAPS and the Department of Safety and Liaison.
A men and boys dialogue was organised in De Aar in November 2012. This focused on the role
of men and boys as critical partners in eradicating violence, as well as affording the opportunity
for solutions to the challenges posed by the violence.
In June 2012, the CGE organised an event in the Village of Deurward (John Taole Gaitsewe
District) on the impact of HIV/AIDS on the development of women. The event was well
attended by the local community. The levels of HIV/AIDS are a major threat to the youth in this
area.
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A consultative dialogue was also held on ‘The 8 principles plan of action for women at SMS
level’. This relates to the economic empowerment of women.
11.8 WESTERN CAPE
The provincial office hosted an exhibition stand and legal advice desk at the Annual Artscapes
Women’s Festival. A key theme of the festival was LGBTI rights and hate crimes perpetrated
against black lesbian women in informal settlements.
This initiative of hosting exhibition stands and legal advice desks was repeated at all Justice
Centres and Legal Aid Clinics throughout the province during the Annual Access to Justice
Week. The CGE was the only Chapter 9 body providing free legal advice to the community.
The CGE took on the secretariat role at the first AGM of the Independent Body Forum. This is a
forum of all Chapter 9 bodies. Following the launch of the forum, various collaborative events
were hosted with the CGE, IEC and the Public Protector of South Africa, starting with
interventions, workshops, dialogues and joint outreach initiatives.
The incidence of hate crimes being perpetrated against the LGBTI community is on the increase
in the Western Cape. This demonstrates an urgent need to invest more public awareness and
education initiatives in the public arena in partnership with key stakeholders. A three-year
strategic intervention has been planned; the primary focus will be to:
• monitor the SAPS and the manner in which they assist gay and lesbian individuals when
reporting and investigating incidents of violence
• develop a marketing strategy to integrate the alliances, activities, and awareness
campaigns to include the general public
• mobilise support for activities, particularly those relating to court proceedings
• improve the CGE’s relationship with the NPA and the media in reporting on and
investigating cases of hate crimes.
Taking into account the issue of language diversity in the Western Cape, four radio slots in
Xhosa, English and Afrikaans were arranged.
Also launched was the 16 Days of Activism with an inter-faith dialogue hosted in partnership
with the Mothers Union at the Cape Town Lodge in November 2012. This event saw a host of
religious and cultural leaders discussing gender-based violence from a spiritual and religious
perspective.
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12 Annual Performance Report
As mentioned earlier, the CGE has four strategic objectives. The following tables illustrate the strategies,
outputs, performance indicators and targets achieved for each of the four objectives.
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE ONE:
To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the
attainment of Gender Equality.

Sub-Strategies

Output
1.1 National
Employment
Equity Status
Report

1. To monitor and
evaluate the
policies and
practices of the
public and private
sector institutions
and provide
reports to
Parliament

2. To initiate
and/or review
legislation that
impacts on
gender equality

2012/13
Target

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for Corrective
Variance
Action

1.1 One
National EE
Report

1.1 Achieved

1.1 N/A

1.1 N/A

1.2 Provincial
Employment
Equity Status
Report

1.2 Four
Provincial
EE Reports

1.2 Achieved

1.2 N/A

1.2 N/A

1.3 National
Gender
Barometer
Progress
Report

1.3 One
National
Gender
Barometer
Report

1.3 Achieved

1.3 N/A

1.3 N/A

2.1 Submissions 2.1 Ten
compiled and
submissions
tabled before
Legislature and/
or Parliament

2.1 Achieved

2.1 N/A

2.1 N/A

2.2 Review of
pre-1994
legislation

2.2 Five per
year

2.2 Achieved

2.2 N/A

2.2 N/A

3.1 Assessment
Reports
prepared &
tabled in
Parliament

3.1 and 3.2
Two
Assessment

3.1 Achieved

3.1 N/A

3.1 N/A

3.2 Achieved

3.2 N/A

3.2 N/A

3.3 Achieved

3.3 N/A

3.3 N/A

2. Submissions
to parliament
and/or
provincial
legislatures on
genderspecific
legislations /
Acts and
SALRC

3. To conduct
3.1 National
periodic perfor365 Days
mance assessAction Plan
ments of governReport
ment departments,
political parties,
3.2 Victims
state institutions,
Charter Report
CSOs and any
private sector
3.3 50/50
organisations, on
legislation and
the implementadiscussion with
tion of legislation
relevant
and policies that
stakeholders in
impact on gender
legislative
equality
reform

Commission for Gender Equality

Performance
Measure
Indicator
1. Reports
prepared &
tabled in
Parliament

3.3 Meetings
with
Stakeholders
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE ONE:
To ensure the creation and implementation of an enabling legislative framework that promotes the
attainment of Gender Equality.

Sub-Strategies

Output

4. To evaluate the
functioning of the
national justice
facilities for
gender
discrimination

4. Evaluation
report on
Maintenance
Courts and
Equality
Courts (on a
sample basis)

5. To convene
policy dialogues
with policy makers
on findings and
recommendations
contained in CGE
Reports

5. National
policy
dialogues
with Heads of
Departments
and / or their
delegated
personnel
5.2 Provincial
policy
dialogues

Commission for Gender Equality

Performance
Measure
Indicator

2012/13
Target

Actual
Target
Achieved

4. Consolidated
Evaluation
Report tabled
with Parliament

4. One
National
Consolidated
Evaluation
Report
tabled with
Parliament

4. Achieved

4. N/A

4. N/A

5. Dialogue
sessions held

5.1 Five
national
policy
dialogues

5.1 Four
Achieved

5.1 Unavailability of
relevant
policy
makers

5.1 One
planned
for quarter
one of
new
financial
year

5.2 Fortyfive
provincial
policy
dialogues

5.2 Forty
Achieved

5.2 Unavailability of
relevant
policy
makers

5.2
Planned
for first
quarter of
new
financial
year
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Variance
Action
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 2:
To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and
raise awareness of issues of gender equality, challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes
and take action against infringements of gender rights through the implementation of appropriate
redress
Sub-Strategies
1. To investigate
complaints of
gender rights
violations and
identify
appropriate
redress per Sect.
11 (1) (e) of the
CGE Act

Output
1. Complaints
dealt with as
per CGE
complaints
procedure
manual

Commission for Gender Equality

Performance
Measure
Indicator
1. Internal
report on
complaints
handled

2012/13
Target

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for Corrective
Variance
Action

1.1 80% of
complaints
received,
considered
and closed

1.1 46% of all
cases,
including
those from
the previous
years have
been closed

1.1 There is a
34% shortfall
against the
target. This is
due to the
finalisation
being
dependant
on court
processes
and the
nature of the
case

1.1 As the
closure of
cases is
dependant
on the
outcome
of legal
proceedings
beyond our
control, this
target will
be
changed

1.2
Installation
of a toll-free
line

1.2 Achieved

1.2 N/A

1.2 N/A

1.3 Acquire
electronic
complaints
handling
system

1.3 Not
achieved

1.3 The
electronic
complaints
handling
system is
dependant
on the IT
Infrastructure
upgrade
which has
not taken
place

1.3 Will be
implemented
once the IT
infrastructure
upgrade
has been
finalised

1.4 Develop
and
disseminate
a Code of
Good
Practice for
the
protection
and
promotion
of gender
equality
applicable
to all sectors

1.4 Achieved

1.4 N/A
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 2:
To protect and promote gender equality by engaging with relevant stakeholders to educate and
raise awareness of issues of gender equality, challenge patriarchal perceptions and stereotypes
and take action against infringements of gender rights through the implementation of appropriate
redress
Sub-Strategies

Output

Performance
Measure
Indicator

2012/13
Target

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for Corrective
Variance
Action

2. One
internal
investigation

2. Achieved

2. N/A

2. N/A

2. To undertake
investigations of
systemic gender
rights violations in
the public &
private sectors

2.
Investigation
report
containing
recommendations to
address
violations

2. Systemic
violation
investigated
and redressed

3. To develop and
implement
a coordinated
programme to
promote gender
equality

3.
Programmes
and materials
to promote
gender
equality

3.1 Campaigns 3.1 Nine
& programmes coordinated
implemented
programmes

3.1
Achieved

3.1 N/A

3.1 N/A

3.2 Developed
& translated
materials

3.2
Developed
material
translated
into four
official
languages

3.2
Achieved

3.2 N/A

3.2 N/A

4. To initiate
interventions for
sustainable
development and
promotion of
gender equality in
cultural and
religious
organisations

4. Develop
interventions
programme

4. Programme
developed

4. One
intervention
programme

4. Achieved

4. N/A

4. N/A

5. To collaborate
with organs of
state, civil society
and other
institutions to
develop, protect,
promote and
attain gender
equality

5. Jointly
developed
programmes
with C9,
CSOs, state
institutions,
institutions of
higher
learning

5. MOU
entered into
with terms of
reference and
under an
approved
collaboration
charter

5. Two jointly
developed
programmes

5. Achieved

5. N/A

5. N/A

Commission for Gender Equality
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 3:
To monitor state compliance with regional and international conventions, covenants and charters
which have been acceded to or ratified by the Republic, relating to the object of the Commission
for Gender Equality
Sub-Strategies

Output

Performance
Measure
Indicator

2012/13
Target

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for Corrective
Variance
Action

1. To conduct
periodic reviews
of state compliance with
obligations under
the conventions,
covenants and
charters and to
report an a
regular basis to
Parliament

1.
Compliance
reports on
international
instruments
produced

1. Baseline
reports
produced and
submitted to
Parliament on
CEDAW,
BEIJING and
MDGs

1. Three
compliance
reports

1. Partially
achieved.
There are
three draft
reports
available

1. UN reporting cycle
for CEDAW
takes place
in 2014,
Beijing Report
in 2014, and
MDGs take
place in 2015

1. Target
will be
adjusted
accordingly to
be in line
with UN
reporting
cycle.
Finalised
reports
also to be
presented
in line with
UN
reporting
cycles

2. To engage
national, regional
and international
bodies on state
compliance with
conventions,
covenants and
charters acceded to or
ratified and to
make recommendations
for improvements

2. Gap
Analysis and
Shadow
Report
follow-up
report on
CEDAW
Committee
2010
recommendations

2. Final report
presented to
CEDAW
committee

2. Three
Periodic
Reports
* None
required for
2012/13.
One follow
-up report

2. Not
required for
current
period

2. N/A

2. N/A
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4:
To build an effective, efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on
gender equality
Performance
Measure
Indicator

Sub-Strategies

Output

1. To establish
and maintain a
well-defined
commissioners’
oversight
governance
structure for
execution of
the mandate
delegated to
the Chief
Executive
Officer, with
clear roles, and
responsibilities

Revised
governance
structure with
clear roles and
responsibilities
for
commissioners
and
secretariat

Draft
governance
structure
document
compilation

2. To develop a
financial
management
strategy that
promotes
effective,
efficient and
economic
utilisation of
resources as
well as
accountability

2.1 Effective
financial
management
controls

2.1 Dashboard
report
indicating
existence of
effective
controls in all
key areas

2.2 Clean
administration

2.3 Revised
financial
management
system

Commission for Gender Equality

2012/13
Target
1.1
Approved
governance
structure

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for
Variance

Corrective
Action

1.2
Achieved

1.1 N/A

1.2.
Achieved

1.2 N/A

2.1 Resolved
audit
findings

2.1 Partially
achieved

2.1
Capacity
and
resource
limitations

2.1 Additional
resources will
be allocated
to resolve all
findings.
Performance
measures and
actions will be
put in place in
the new
financial year

2.2 Risk
management
report

2.2. Defined
financial
delegations

2.2
Achieved

2.2. N/A

2.2 N/A

2.3 Actual vs
Budget Report

2.3 Risk
management
committee
established

2.3
Achieved

2.3 N/A

2.3 N/A

2.4 Budget
integrated
to strategic
plans

2.4
Achieved

2.4 N/A

2.4 N/A

1.1 N/A
1.2 N/A

1.2
Approved
delegation
of authorities
document
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4:
To build an effective, efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on
gender equality

Sub-Strategies
3. To improve,
align and
maintain
innovative ICT
infrastructure &
systems that
support the
CGE
organisational
objectives

Output
Reliable &
effective ICT
that is readily
available

Commission for Gender Equality

Performance
Measure
Indicator

2012/13
Target

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for
Variance

3.1 Approved
ICT
governance
framework &
strategy

3.1 ICT
governance
framework &
related
policies

3.1 Partially
achieved

3.1 An
assessment
of the IT
infrastructure
was
conducted
and
provided
recommendations that
provide a
roadmap for
an ICT
governance
framework

3.1 SITA was
engaged to
provide a
Service
Management
Plan, also
known as MSP.
This
necessitated a
tender process
which will take
place in the
new financial
year

3.2 Approved
ICT policies

3.2 ICT Infrastructure
refresh/
replacement

3.2 Limited
progress

3.2 A
detailed
infrastructure
implementation plan
has not
been
prepared. A
tender
process
needed to
be undertaken

3.2 The tender
process will
take place
once the MSP
has been
finalised

3.3 Prioritised
ICT plan

3.3 Business
Continuity
Plan

3.3 Not
achieved

3.3 The
preparation
of the plan
has been
delayed
due to the
limited progress on the
infrastructure
plan

3.3 This will
take place
once the MSP
has been
finalised
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4:
To build an effective, efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on
gender equality
Performance
Measure
Indicator

2012/13
Target

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for
Variance

Corrective
Action

Sub-Strategies

Output

4. To develop a
comprehensive
HR strategy that
creates an
enabling
environment for
employee
wellbeing,
talent
attraction,
development &
retention

4.1 HR
strategy that
establishes
harmony
between
human capital
and
organisational
needs

4.1 Approved
HR strategy,
policies &
procedures

4.1 HR
4.1
policies
Achieved
development
& review

4.1
Achieved

4.1 N/A

4.2 Establish
high
performance
organisation

4.2.1
Implemented
EAP

4.2.1
4.2.1 Not
Implemented achieved
EAP

4.2.1 Not
achieved

4.2.1 Deferred
to next
financial year

4.2.2 Signed
performance
agreement

4.2.2
4.2.2
Performance Achieved
Management System

4.2.2
Achieved

4.2.2 N/A

4.2.3
Achieved

4.2.3
Achieved

4.2.3 N/A

4.2.4 VIP leave
administration
reports

4.2.4
4.2.4
Electronic
Achieved
leave administration

4.2.4
Achieved

4.2.4 N/A

4.2.5 New &
revised job
profiles

4.2.5 Job
design/
profiles

4.2.5
Achieved

4.2.5
Achieved

4.5 N/A

Approved
funding policy

5.1 Donor
funding
policy

5.1
Achieved

5.1
Achieved

5.1 N/A

5.2 Grant by
National
Treasury to
retain
previously
reported
surpluses

5.2 Partially
achieved

5.2 Partially
achieved

5.2 To follow
up on the
outstanding
approval

4.2.3 Training
4.2.3 Training
plan & annual & developtraining reports ment

5. To develop a
long-term
funding model
for the CGE
that includes
funding from
the National
Treasury and
donor agencies

Funding model
with revised
baseline
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4:
To build an effective, efficient and sustainable institution that will fulfil its constitutional mandate on
gender equality
Performance
Measure
Indicator

2012/13
Target

6.1
Communications
strategy

6.1 Approved
internal &
external
communication
protocols &
policies

6.1
Improved
systems for
coverage
of all CGE
programmes

6.1
Achieved

6.1 N/A

6.1 N/A

6.2 Optimised
CGE brand

6.2 Approved
internal &
external
communications manual

6.2 Improved

6.2
Achieved

6.2 N/A

6.2 N/A

6.3.1 Editorial
policy

6.3.1 and
6.3.2 and
6.3.3
Improved
systems for
coverage
of all CGE
programmes

6.3.1
Achieved

6.3.1 N/A

6.3.1 N/A

6.3.2
Achieved

6.3.2 N/A

6.3.2 N/A

6.3.3
Achieved

6.3.3 N/A

6.3.3 N/A

Sub-Strategies

Output

6. To develop a
coherent
communications
strategy that
favourably
positions CGE
image

6.3 With
improved CGE
visibility

6.3.2 Media &
communications audit
6.3.3 Media
monitoring

systems for

Actual
Target
Achieved

Reasons for Corrective
Variance
Action

coverage of all
CGE
programmes

NOTES:
i) The target outcome for CEDAW, BEIJING and MDG does not apply as it will only be finalised
in the next reporting period. The evaluation reports cover a number of years and at this
stage reflect a target only.
ii) Court proceedings are outside CGE’s control, therefore finalising cases depends on court
procedures.
iii) The target of five national policy dialogues has been 80 per cent achieved. The shortfall of
one dialogue resulted from factors outside CGE’s control.
iv) Our funding target has yet to be established by National Treasury.
v) Limited resources resulted in not all audit findings being resolved.
In summary: All targets relating to the main strategies have been achieved. Of the five missing
targets, four relate to IT and one to Human Resources. In the case of Human Resources, this is
in progress and will be finalised in the next reporting cycle. In the case of IT, more attention will
be paid to this during the current year.
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13 Corporate Support Services
13.1 COMMUNICATIONS
An improved and focused communications strategy was implemented in the last quarter of the
financial year, which aimed to reposition the image of the CGE. A media audit showed an
improving position from a peak in 2009 of negative media reporting on the CGE to the present
positive position in 2012. Objectives and results are outlined below.
The media and communications audit
A major decision in the process of repositioning the image of the CGE was to undertake a
communications and media audit for the following reasons.
•
•
•
•
•
•

To investigate and evaluate the past methods applied in communication with the media
and general public
To establish the nuances that reflect the CGE and its work as covered by the media
To establish the extent to which there has been media coverage of the CGE in the past four
years
To determine the challenges or problems that the CGE encounters when communicating
with its audiences
To determine the systems used in reaching communication goals and objectives
To assess the level of skills of those who are in charge of communication activities.

Key Findings

Negative media reports on CGE 2009 – 2012

6
5
4
3
2
1
0
2009
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Positive reports on CGE

6
5
4
3
2
1
0
2009

2010

2011

2012

Number of reports where CGE is quoted or
mentioned
18
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
2009
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Interim media and communications strategy (September-December 2012)
The communications strategy was to explore and clarify the communications programmes and
improve coverage, and to forecast the outcomes of efforts of the Public Education and
Information Programme (PEI) in the coverage of information from September to December
2012. The strategy covered the following organisational events and activities.
•
•
•

The 16 Days Campaign (communications and media campaign)
The provincial programmes, eg coverage of EE hearings
The improvement and development of communications tools

The key highlight during the period of September to December 2012 was the partnership with
the SABC to commemorate the 16 Days Campaign.

13.2.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The internal IT environment remains challenging because of the need to replace significant
equipment and applications. This will be done once appropriate funding allocations have
been made. Notwithstanding this situation, service levels have remained satisfactory.
A measure of success has been achieved with the website, where gender information is made
public. The website has had approximately 43 000 visitors, 60 per cent of them being return
visits.
There are 14 managed servers within the CGE domain, of which five are based in head office
and two in the hosted environment. The servers have reached the end of their lives and
hardware failure could be imminent if corrective action is not taken.
The section is categorised by two aspects – performance and usage. The graphics will
demonstrate the health or otherwise of the state of assets in our environment.

Indicates the system performance is acceptable

Indicates that the system has exceeded the acceptable operational threshold,
and needs to be addressed immediately.

Indicates that the system is operational, not yet in a critical state, but if not
attended to, will fall below the required threshold.

Commission for Gender Equality
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Server
STATUS

Commission for Gender Equality

DEVICE

RESPONSIBILITY

AVAILABILITY

NARRATION

CGE-SUS

AV, Updates,
Patches and
VIP SoftLine

90%

Pathes,
vulnerability
and VIP

EXCH-Back

Back End Mail

88%

Mail flow,
congestion at
ISA, HW/SW

CGE-DATA

File and Print

99%

Storage
capacity
reached
critical limit,
HW/SW

CGE-ISA

Internet

82%

Slave drive
faulty

EXCH-FEP

Front End Mail

89%

Slave drive
faulty
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13.3 Human resources
The department’s budget in terms of employee expenditure for specific programmes during
2012/2013 is based on the following.
13.3.1 Personnel expenditure
13.3.1.1 Personnel costs by salary band
Salary

Number of
employees

Skilled (Level 3-5 )
Highly skilled (6-8)
Highly skilled supervision (9-12)

Personnel
expenditure
cost

Percentage
of total
personnel

11

1 471 997

4%

22

5 386 590

16%

Average
personnel cost
per employee
133 818
244 845

42

20 661 086

60%

480 490

Senior management (13-15)

5

3 102 713

9%

775 678

Commissioners

9

3 888 616

11%

672 810

Total

89

34 511 002

100%

2 307 641

13.3.1.2 Salaries, overtime, homeowners’ allowances and medical assistance by programme
The following table provides a summary per programme and salary band of expenditure
incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, homeowners’ allowances and medical assistance.
Home
Owners
Allowance

Leave
Paid Out

Salaries

* Commissioners’ Office

5 993 080

-

-

-

-

5 993 080

* CEO Office

2 203 830

-

-

-

-

2 203 830

Financial management

3 815 370

10 550

39 636

10 296

19 862

3 895 714

829 371

-

-

-

-

829 871

Human resources

15 558 888

-

13 212

22 032

-

1 594 132

Public education
and Information

3 506 726

13 450

39 636

60 588

-

3 620 400

Legal services

3 714 743

16 200

39 636

29 322

36 788

3 836 689

Research and
policy programme

3 131 995

9 870

26 424

60 776

13 222

3 842 287

684 728

-

-

-

-

684 728

Information and
communication

1 102 799

14 660

26 424

33 048

-

1 176 931

Administration

7 301 879

33 000

98 461

7 433 340

33 843 908

97 730

168 333

34 511 002

Internal audit /
monitoring & evaluation

Parliamentary liaison
and legislation

Total

Overtime

Medical
Assistance

Programme

184 968

216 062

Total

• The expenses include salaries of support staff in office.
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13.3.2 Job evaluation
The job evaluation report was drafted and will be considered in the new financial year.
13.3.3 Performance-related rewards – Bonus in lieu of 2011/2012 Performance Cycle
Salary band

Beneficiary
profile

Total cost (R)
per employee

Average
cost (R)

Number
of employees
Commissioners

-

-

-

Senior management

-

-

-

Middle management

11

365 652

33 241

Staff

58

662 688

11 426

Total

69

1 028 340

44 667

13.3.4 Foreign workers
FOREIGN WORKERS WITHIN THE CGE IN 2012/13

3

13.3.5 Utilisation of leave
13.3.5.1 Sick leave
As part of the Commission’s management process, the organisation monitored the utilisation
of sick and annual leave. The following table provides a record of this for the period under
review.
Salary band

Number
of
employees

Total
days
taken

% Days
with
medical
certification

Number
of
employees
using
sick leave

Average
per
employee
per day

Average
days
per
employee

Skilled (Level 3-5 )

11

80

100%

7

1 286 60

7.27

Highly skilled (6-8)

22

128

100%

14

1 458 77

5.82

Highly skilled
supervision (9-12)

42

149

100%

13

1 336 40

3.55

Senior management
(13-15)

5

-

100%

-

1 628 51

0.00

Commissioners

9

-

100%

-

2 560 75

0.00

Total

89

357

100%

34

1 500 71

4.01
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13.3.5.2 Annual leave
Salary band

Number of
employees
who have
taken leave

Total days
taken

Average per
employee

Skilled (Level 3-5 )

11

168

15.27

Highly skilled (6-8)

22

268

12.18

Highly skilled supervision (9-12)

42

580

13.81

Senior management (13-15)

5

40

8.00

Commissioners

9

50

5.56

Total

89

1106

12.43

13.3.5.3 Leave payouts
The following table summarises payments made to employees in lieu of leave taken.
Reason

Number of
employees

Total amount
paid out (R)

Average
per Employee (R)

6

168 333

28 056

Termination of service

13.3.6 Employment changes
This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover
rates are a component of the employment profile of any organisation.
The following tables provide a summary of such turnover rates by salary band (see 13.3.6.1)
and by critical occupation (see 13.3.6.2.) for the Commission.
13.3.6.1
Salary band

Number of
employees
per band
as at
1 April 2012

Appointments
and transfers
within the
Commission

Terminations
and transfers
out of the
Commission

Turnover
rate

Skilled (Level 3-5 )

9

-

-

1%

Highly skilled (6-8)

21

1

1

0%

Highly skilled supervision (9-12)

39

4

5

6%

Senior management (13-15)

5

-

-

0%

Commissioners

3

6

-

0%

Total

77

11

6

7%
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13.3.6.2
Occupation

Number
of
employees
per
occupation
as on
1 March 2013

Appointments
and transfers
into the
department

Terminations
and transfers
out of the
department

Turnover
rate

Legal service

9

-

-

0%

Education

9

2

-

0%

Research

9

-

2

7%

Total

27

2

2

7%

13.3.6.3 Reasons nominated for staff leaving the Commission
Termination type

Number

% Total

Death

1

14%

Resignation

6

86%

Expiry of contract

-

0%

Dismissal – operational changes

-

0%

Dismissal – misconduct

-

0%

Dismissal – inefficiency

-

0%

Discharge due to illness

-

0%

Retirement

-

0%

Transfers to other public
service departments

-

0%

Other
Total

Commission for Gender Equality

0%
7

100%
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13.3.7. Employment equity
Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following
occupational categories at 31 March 2013.
Occupational
Categories

Male
African

Female

Coloured Indian

White

African Coloured

Total
Indian

White

Legislators,
senior officials
and managers

5

-

-

-

5

2

-

2

14

Professionals

8

-

1

-

4

-

-

-

13

Technicians
and associate
professionals

16

2

-

-

16

-

2

1

37

Clerks

1

-

-

-

24

-

-

-

25

Service and
sales workers

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Elementary
occupations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Employees with
disabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

30

2

1

-

49

2

2

3

89

Plant and
workers
machine
operators
and assemblers

Total
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13.3.8

Employment and vacancies by programme

Programme

Number of
vacancies

Number
of posts

Number
of posts
filled

Vacancy
rate

Number of
posts filled
additional to
the
establishment

Commissioners

3

12

9

25%

-

Human resources

-

4

4

0%

-

IT / C

-

6

6

0%

-

Legal – National

4

5

1

80%

-

Research – National

2

5

3

40%

-

Education – National

-

4

4

0%

-

Provincial coordinators

5

9

4

56%

-

Provinces – Legal

-

9

9

0%

-

Provinces – Research

3

9

6

33%

-

Provinces – Education

1

9

8

11%

-

Provinces – Administrators

1

9

8

11%

-

Provinces – Office Assistant

2

9

7

22%

-

Finance

2

9

7

22%

-

Parliament

-

1

1

0%

-

PA – National

-

5

5

0%

-

Driver – National

-

1

1

0%

-

Office Assistant – National

-

1

1

0%

-

Tempo

-

-

4

-

-

CEO's office

1

2

1

50%

-

Total

24

109

89

22%

-
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13.3.9 Recruitment
Occupational
Categories

Male
African

Female

Coloured Indian

White

African Coloured

Total
Indian

White

Top
management

2

-

-

-

5

2

-

-

9

Senior
management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Professionally
qualified

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

Skilled,
technical and
academically
qualified workers

1

-

-

-

-

2

-

-

3

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

Unskilled and
defined
decision making

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Employees
with disabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

5

-

-

-

5

4

-

-

14

13.3.10 Promotions during the period under review
Occupational
Categories

Male
African

Female

Coloured Indian

White

African Coloured

Total
Indian

White

Top
management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Senior
management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Professionally
qualified

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

Skilled, technical
& academically
qualified workers

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Unskilled and
defined decision
making

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Employees with
disabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2
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13.3.11 Terminations
Occupational
Categories

Male
African

Female

Coloured Indian

White

African Coloured

Total
Indian

White

Top
management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Senior
management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Professionally
qualified

1

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

2

Skilled,
technical and
academically
qualified workers

1

-

-

-

2

-

-

-

3

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

1

Unskilled and
defined decision
making

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Employees with
disabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

2

-

-

-

3

1

-

-

6

13.3.12 Disciplinary action taken
Occupational
Categories

Male
African

Professionals

Commission for Gender Equality

-

Female

Coloured Indian
-

-

White
-

59

African Coloured
-

1

Total
Indian

White

-

-

1
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13.3.13 Skills development
Occupational
Categories

Male
African

Female

Coloured Indian

White

African Coloured

Total
Indian

White

Top
management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Senior
management

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Professionally
qualified

7

-

-

-

2

-

-

-

9

Skilled technical,
academically
qualified workers

15

2

-

-

11

-

-

-

28

Semi-skilled and
discretionary
decision making

3

-

-

-

16

-

-

-

19

Unskilled and
defined decision
making

-

-

-

-

8

-

-

-

8

Employees with
disabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

25

2

-

-

37

-

-

-

64

Total

Commission for Gender Equality

60

A society free from gender oppression and inequality

14 Report of the Audit Committee
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2013.
14.1 Audit committee members and attendance
The audit committee for the year under review consisted of three external members and two
internal members. The members of the committee are listed hereunder. This audit committee
is required to meet at least four times a year according to its approved Terms of Reference.
During the current year the committee held five (5) meetings.
Name of member

Designation

Number of
meetings attended

Mr Velile Kweyama

Chairperson (External)

5

Ms Rael Hamisi

Member (External)

2

Mr Aluwani Munyamela

Member (External)

3

Commissioner Stevens-Maziya

Member (Internal)

2

Commissioner Maphazi

Member (Internal)

1

14.2 Responsibility of the audit committee
We report that we have adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference in line with the
requirements of Sections 38 (1) (a) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of
1999, and Treasury Regulation 3.1. We report that the affairs of the committee were conducted
in compliance with the Terms of Reference referred to.
14.3 Effectiveness of internal control
The Commission has designed a system of internal control to provide cost-effective assurance
that its goals will be achieved economically, effectively and efficiently.
In line with the PFMA, the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal
Auditing issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors, and the requirements of the King III Report
on Corporate Governance, Internal Audit provided the committee and management with
assurances that internal controls are appropriate and effective.
The system of internal control was not entirely effective during the year under review. Several
deficiencies in the system were reported by Internal Audit and the Auditor General of South
Africa. In certain areas, matters reported previously have been addressed. Despite this, nothing
significant and/or material has been brought to our attention to indicate a total breakdown
in the functioning of these controls up until 31 March 2013.
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Accordingly, with the exception of the reported deficiencies and deviations, we can report
that the system of internal control over financial reporting for the period under review was
adequate, effective and efficient.

14.4 Internal audit
The audit committee reviewed the internal audit quarterly reports to ensure that internal audit
activities were conducted in terms of the approved annual and three-year rolling plan. The
audit committee registered its concerns with management regarding the adequacy of
resources within the Internal audit function. As a result, management appointed an additional
internal auditor to augment existing capacity to ensure that plans are implemented
adequately.
Management has further committed to considering other sourcing arrangements to ensure
that the work of internal audit complies with the requirements of the Standards for Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing. The results of these considerations are expected to bear fruit
during the 2014 financial year.

14.5 Risk management
Management is responsible for proactively identifying, evaluating, managing and monitoring
all significant risks faced by the Commission. The Commission has developed a comprehensive
risk management policy with a view to safeguarding its staff, assets, corporate credibility and
reputation.
During the period under review the audit committee made various recommendations to
management regarding areas of improvement in the effectiveness of the risk management
committee. Of particular concern was the effectiveness of the risk management committee,
including timely identification and consistent monitoring of risk. The effectiveness of this
committee was enhanced by the appointment during the year of an independent chairperson
to ensure compliance with the requirements of the National Treasury Risk Management
Framework. This committee has since picked up its functioning and the audit committee is
expecting improvements in the monitoring of risk and a better prospect of the Commission
achieving its objectives during 2014.

14.6 The quality of in-year management quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and
Treasury Regulations
We have reviewed the in-year quarterly reports submitted by management in terms of the
PFMA and Treasury regulations. Various recommendations were made on upgrading such
reports to improve quality and meet the necessary requirements. There has been a notable
improvement in the control and quality of these reports over the period.
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14.7 Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has:
•
Reviewed and discussed the Annual Financial Statements for the year ending 2013;
•
Reviewed and discussed the report of the Auditor General of South Africa. We noted the
Auditor General’s opinion on:
Annual financial statements;
Matters affecting the opinion and
Compliance with laws and regulations.
The Audit Committee has discussed, concurs with and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor
General on the annual financial statements and recommends these to the Accounting Officer.

14.8 Appreciation
We wish to express our appreciation to the Commission officials and the office of the Auditor
General for the support they have provided during the course of the year.

V. Kweyama
Audit Committee Chairperson
31 July 2013
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15 Financial Management
15.1 OVERVIEW
For the financial year ending 31 March 2013 the Commission has reported a nett surplus of
approximately R3 million. The surplus is mainly as a result of under-spending on the annual
allocation from national government and additional income received from donors and interest
earned from the bank. The surplus represents 5% of the total allocation an improvement in
spending in comparison to 9% (or R4.9 m) under-spending in the 2011/2012 financial year.
The financial position as at 31 March 2013 remained stable; the changes in nett assets are
explained by the movements in accumulated surplus, in the main as a result of the financial
performance in the current reporting period.

15.2 REVENUE AND INCOME
For the year under review, the Commission recorded income of R61.2 million, primarily resulting
from transfers received from National Treasury and further income from exchange and nonexchange transactions. The income recorded in the current year represents an increase of
R5.6 million (or 10%) in comparison to a figure of R55.7 million recorded in the prior period.
The transfers amounting to R59.1 million were appropriated by a parliamentary vote and
remitted to the Commission as a main division of an allocation made in favour of the
Department for Women, Children and People with Disabilities. The balance of income realised
consisted of R1.3 million being the value of donations received in kind from the South African
Broadcasting Corporation (SABC), R693 071 being interest income from excess cash in the bank
and R100 731 from other sundry activities such as discretionary grants from the Services Sector
Education and Training Authority (SSETA).
The transfers represent the budget allocations that were made as part of the National Treasury
funding of the Commission. For the current financial year, the allocation was increased by
7.11% from an allocation of R55.1 million in the 2011/2012 financial year. The increase in
allocation was mainly to cater for the changes in prices due to inflation, driven in the main by
cost of living adjustments provided for the salary increases to staff, management and
commissioners. The graph on the next page draws a comparison by economic classification
between annual allocation for the 2011/2012 and 2012/2013 financial years.
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15.3 EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS
For the period under review, the Commission incurred expenditure to a total amount of R58.3
million, an increase of 14.9% from the reported spending of R50.8 million for the 2011/2012
financial year. The comparative excess spending is attributable mostly by an increase in
administrative expenditure, where major contributors were travel and accommodation and
publicity and events. The increased expenditure in these accounts in 2012/2013 is
commensurate with the comparatively high service delivery between the two reporting
periods. The level of performance on the Annual Performance Plan has increased by 75% as
shown by the number of performance targets achieved in comparison to those reported in
the previous period.
The spending for the 2012/2013 financial year has overall remained within the budget
allocations, although there have been spending deviations within the elements of the budget.
In the reporting period, the Commission reported a favourable variance of R6.7 million (or 16%)
from the allocation, mainly because of vacancies within the establishment, and this was set off
by over-expenditure on goods and services as well as unbudgeted depreciation expenses.
From this analysis, it could be deduced that in the main, the reported surplus for the period is
arising from other income, as is shown in the Statement of Financial Performance as contained
in the Annual Financial Statement for the year ending 31 March 2013.
Economic Classification

Budget
2012/2013

Actual Spending
2012/2013

Compensation of Employees

41 264 003

34 511 002

6 753 001

Depreciation & Amortisation

-

1 052 580

-1 052 580

-100%

Goods & Services

17 808 997

22 718 359

-4 909 362

-28%

Grand Total

59 073 000

58 281 942

791 058

1%
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Expenditure by Programme
Commissioner
governance &
Support
Administrative Expenses

Personnel

10 792 294

7 095 933

20 729 768

-

30 936

-

30 936

76 201

1 400 567

480 887

1 957 655

6 052 869

9 638 503

18 819 630

34 511 002

-

1 062 680

-

1 052 580

8 970 611

22 914 881

26 396 450

58 281 942

Property, Plant & Equipment
Grand Total

Grand
Total

2 841 540

Finance Cost
Other Operating Expenses

Main
Service
Delivery

Corporate
Services

Expenditure by Location

5
Administrative Expenses
Finance Cost
Other Operating Expenses
Personnel
Property, Plant & Equipment
Grand Total

Head

Provincial

Grand

Office

Office

Total

15 505 481

5 224 287

20 729 768

30 936

-

30 936

1 579 876

377 780

1 957 655

19 757 926

14 753 076

34 511 002

1 052 580

-

1 052 580

37 926 799

20 355 143

58 281 942

The main service delivery programme contributed R26.4 million or 46% of total spending,
whilst the corporate support and Commissioner programme accounted for 39% and 15%
of the total spending of R58.3 million for the period.
An amount of R38 million was spent on activities undertaken by Head Office, whilst R20.3
million arose from activities taking place in nine (9) provincial offices. The ratio was
therefore skewed to Head Office at 65% to 35% for provinces.

15.4 FINANCIAL POSITION
The net asset position in the statement of the financial position remains strong at R12.1 million,
supported mainly by cash resources. Cash and cash equivalents stood at R18.1 million as at
31 March 2013, compared to R11.3 m held at 31 March 2012. This is explained by a
comparative increase of R3 m in payable balance reported in the 2012/2013 period in addition
to the surplus for the current period.
During the course of the period under review, there has not been material movement in total
assets, except for the noted increase in cash and equivalents. The non-current assets primary
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reduced from restated nett carrying amounts of R2, 5 million in 2011/2012 to R1.7 million as at
31 March 2013, primarily explained by the net of depreciation expenses of R1 million and fixed
assets purchases of R318 536 made during the current period. The amounts receivable from
debtors remained insignificant at R171.892 in the prior period and R214.868 in 2012/2013.
Current liabilities stood at R7.9 million at the end of the 2012/2013 financial year, up from R4.9
million in prior periods. This was mainly due to payables to the South African Revenue Service
and other creditors, which were respectively legally and contractually payable after the
reporting date. In comparison to the earlier period, these creditors were paid before the
reporting date.
In summary, solvency and liquidity remain firm on the face of the Statement of Financial Position
and is in the main explained by the excess cash at hand.

15.5 ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES
In line with the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act and the relevant
regulations and guidelines from National Treasury, the Commission has continued to aim at full
compliance with the laws and regulations. This included the setting up of systems of internal
controls to detect and avoid irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and effective
management of Revenues, Expenditure, Assets and Liabilities. In this pursuit, a number of
activities were undertaken during the course of the year to address weaknesses previously
reported in the regularity audit conducted by the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA).

15.6 AN OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT
The Commission recognises that risk management is an integral part of good corporate
governance. To this end, the Commission has established a Risk Management Committee to
monitor the implementation of risk management in a systematic and regular manner, ensuring
the Commission achieves its objectives.
The Commission therefore, in terms of its risk management philosophy and approach,
systematically manages and regularly updates its risk profile at a strategic, macro-operational
and operational level. The goal of risk management is to ensure that significant, actual and
potential risks facing the Commission are identified, assessed, evaluated and managed in an
effective way.
The Risk Management Committee is comprised of senior managers of the Commission and
outside members with the necessary expertise in risk management. The members of the
management team are required as a matter of philosophy to have risk management
embedded into management processes and take accountability for the implementation of
the risk treatment strategies and plans.
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Central to the risk management process the Risk management Committee is responsible for the
assessment and evaluation of significant risks and ensures that there are appropriate forums
and focus on feedback with regard to managing risks through an appropriate system of
control. These risks are assessed in terms of impact and likelihood in order to determine inherent
risk exposure. The risks are then rated and accountability at executive level established for each
significant risk.
The risk treatment plans are approved by the Audit Committee and presented to the Plenary
for the exercise of oversight responsibilities.
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16 Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament
on the Commission for Gender Equality
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INTRODUCTION
16.1
I have audited the financial statements of the Commission for Gender Equality set out
on pages 77 to 119, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2013, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and
the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
16.2
The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and
for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY
16.3
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa,
2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in terms thereof and
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
16.4

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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16.5

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

OPINION
16.6
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Commission for Gender Equality as at 31 March 2013, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with SA
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.
EMPHASIS OF MATTERS
16.7
I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters.
SIGNIFICANT UNCERTAINTIES
16.8
With reference to note 24 to the financial statements, the entity is the defendant in a
lawsuit claim against a supplier with regards to a cancelled contract. The ultimate
outcome of this matter cannot presently be determined and no provision for any liability
that may result has been made in the financial statements.
MATERIAL LOSSES
16.9
As disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements, material losses of assets with a
historical cost of R1 264 568 and accumulated depreciation of R1 197 593 were incurred
as a result of inadequate controls over safeguarding of the assets.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
16.10 In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the
following findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives,
compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion.
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
16.11 I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the
information in the annual performance report as set out on pages 39 to 47 of the annual
report.
16.12

The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against
the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual
performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is
consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to
whether indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific,
measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury
Framework for managing programme performance information.
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The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to
determine whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and
complete).
16.13

There were no material findings on the annual performance report concerning the
usefulness and reliability of the information.

ADDITIONAL MATTER
16.14 Although no material findings concerning the usefulness and reliability of the
performance information were identified in the annual performance report, I draw
attention to the following matter.
ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS
16.15 Of the total number of 43 targets planned for the year, 11 of the targets were not
achieved during the year under review. This represents 26% of total planned targets
that were not achieved during the year under review. For further details on the extent
and reasons for deviations between planned targets and actual performance refer to
section 12, page 39-47 of the annual performance report. This was as a result of the
entity not adequately monitoring performance against predetermined targets on an
ongoing basis to take appropriate steps timeously in ensuring achievement of targets.
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
16.16 I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with
applicable laws and regulations regarding financial matters, financial management
and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific
matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued
in terms of the PAA are as follows:
ASSET MANAGEMENT
16.17 Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as
required by section 38(1) (d) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation (TR) 10.1.1(a).
EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT
16.18 The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as
required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and TR 9.1.1.
PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT
16.19 The preference point system was not always applied in procurement of goods and
services above R30 000 as required by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement
Policy Framework Act and TR 16A6.3 (b).
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16.20

Bid adjudication was not always done by committees which were composed in
accordance with the policies of the constitutional institution, as required by TR 16A6.2
(a), (b) and (c).

16.21

Quotations were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters had not been declared by
the South African Revenue Services to be in order as required by TR16A9.1 (d) and the
Preferential Procurement Regulations.

INTERNAL CONTROL
16.22

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual
performance report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported
below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant
deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with laws and regulations.

LEADERSHIP
16.23 The leadership did not adequately establish and communicate policies and
procedures to enable and support understanding and execution of internal control
objectives, processes and responsibilities.
FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
16.24 Management did not have sufficient monitoring controls to ensure compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations.

Pretoria
31 July 2013
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17.1 Statement of Responsibility and Approval
of the Annual Financial Statements
The accounting officer is responsible for monitoring the preparation and the integrity of the
financial statements and related information included in this annual report. In order for the
accounting officer to discharge these responsibilities, as well as those bestowed on it in terms
of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999 as amended by Act No. 29 of 1999
and other applicable legislation, it has developed and maintained a system of internal controls.
The accounting officer acknowledges that management is ultimately responsible for the system
of internal financial controls established by the Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) and
places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the
accounting officer to meet these responsibilities, the commissioners set standards for internal
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. These standards
include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedure, and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of
risk. These controls are monitored throughout the CGE and all employees are required to
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the CGE’s mandate is conducted in a
manner that, in all reasonable circumstances, is above reproach. The focus of risk
management is on identifying, assessing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the CGE.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the CGE endeavours to minimise it by ensuring
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. Monitoring of these controls
includes a regular review of their operations by the accounting officer and independent
oversight by an audit committee.
As part of the system of internal control, the internal audit function conducts operational,
financial and specific audits and coordinates audit coverage with the external auditors. The
external auditors are responsible for reporting on the financial statements.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the South African Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations of such
statements issued by the Accounting Practices Board. They are based on appropriate
accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgement and estimates.
The accounting officer believes that the CGE will continue to be a going concern in the
foreseeable future due to the availability of funding from the National Treasury. For this reason
the accounting officer continues to adopt the going-concern basis in preparing the annual
financial statements.

Commission for Gender Equality

74

A society free from gender oppression and inequality

The accounting officer approved the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2013 as set out on pages 77 to 119 on 31 July 2013 which were signed on its behalf by:

Keketso Maema
Chief Executive Officer

Mfanozelwe Shozi
Chairperson
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17.2 General Information
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Mr M Shozi (Chairperson) - (Re-appointed 01/06/2012)
Ms T Mpumlwana (Deputy Chairperson) - (Appointed 01/06/2012)
Ms L Nare - (Appointed 01/06/2012)
Ms J Hicks- (Re-appointed 01/06/2012)
Ms N Loyilane- (Re-appointed 01/06/2012)
Ms S Stevens-Maziya- (Appointed 01/06/2012)
Dr W Mgoqi- (Appointed 01/06/2012)
Dr Maphazi- (Appointed 01/06/2012)
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17.3 Statement of Financial Performance
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

Note

Revenue
Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
Other Income
Total Revenue
Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Personnel Costs
Other Operating Expenses
Finance Costs
Assets Written Off
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Total Expenses
Surplus for the Year

Commission for Gender Equality
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2013
R

2012
R
Restated

2
3

59 073 000
2 168 477
61 241 477

55 150 000
515 231
55 665 231

4
5
6
7
8
11

20 662 794
34 511 002
1 957 655
30 936
66 974
1 052 581
58 281 942

12 507 681
34 249 213
2 484 588
37 040
74 968
1 388 959
50 742 449

2 959 535

4 922 782

A society free from gender oppression and inequality

17.4 Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2013

Note

2013
R

2012
R
Restated

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions

9
10

18 061 587
214 868
18 276 455

11 288 433
171 892
11 460 325

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

11
11

1 721 302
1 721 302

2 522 320
2 522 320

19 997 757

13 982 645

3 407 653
3 058 086
1 441 362
7 907 101

1 800 476
1 272 011
1 779 037
4 851 524

7 907 101

4 851 524

12 090 656

9 131 121

Accumulated Surplus

12 090 656

9 131 121

Total Net Assets

12 090 656

9 131 121

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables from Exchange Transactions
Payables from Non-exchange Transactions
Provisions

12
13
14

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Net ASSETS
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17.5 Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Note

Balance at 31 March 2011
Prior period error
Balance at 31 March 2011 restated
Surplus for the year restated
Balance at 31 March 2012 restated
Surplus for the year
Balance at 31 March 2013
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Accumulated
Surplus
R

3 568 627
639 712
4 208 339
4 922 782
9 131 121
2 959 535
12 090 656

Total Net
Assets
R

3 568 627
639 712
4 208 339
4 922 782
9 131 121
2 959 535
12 090 656
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17.6 Cash Flow Statement
For the Year ended 31 March 2013

Note

2013
R

2012
R
Restated

2
3
3

59 866 802
59 073 000
693 071
100 731

55 665 231
55 150 00
272 961
242 270

7

52 775 112
52 744 176
30 936

53 136 259
53 099 219
37 040

16

7 091 690

2 528 972

11
11

(318 536)
-

(111 040)
-

(318 536)

(111 040)

-

-

6 773 154

2 417 932

11 288 433
18 061 587

8 870 501
11 288 433

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Receipts from Stakeholders
Grants
Interest received
Sundry income
Cash Paid to Stakeholders
Personnel & Suppliers
Interest Paid
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net Increase / (decrease) in Net Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents
at the beginning of Year
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
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17.7 Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2013

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), as issued by the Accounting Standards
Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, (Act No
1 of 1999).

1.1

Reporting entity
The CGE is an institution established in terms of Chapter 9 of the Constitution Act
(Act No. 108 of 1996) of the Republic of South Africa, and is responsible for:
• the promotion of the respect for gender equality
• the protection, development and attainment of gender equality.
Its additional mandate is further provided for in the Commission for Gender Equality
Act (Act No. 39 of 1996) as amended.
The primary objective of Chapter 9 institutions, including the CGE, is to strengthen
constitutional democracy.
The core business of the CGE is:
• to promote gender equality
• to advise and make recommendations to Parliament and any other legislature
with regard to any laws or proposed legislation that affects gender equality and
the status of women.
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation and presentation of
these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated:
• Consideration was given to whether the accounting policy is reasonable,
given the circumstances of the CGE, and noted that it is important and
reasonable as well.
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1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
1.2.1

Basis for measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting
and incorporate the historical cost conventions as the basis of measurement, except
where otherwise indicated.

1.2.2 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in South African rands, which is the CGE’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in rands has been rounded
off to the nearest rand, unless otherwise stated.
1.2.3 Offset
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is
either required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.
1.2.4 Going-concern assumption
These annual financial statements were prepared based on the expectation that
the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12
months. The going-concern basis presumes that funds will be available to finance
future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of
business.
1.2.5 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and
critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements is given in the following
notes.
Trade receivables
The measurement of receivables is derived after consideration of the allowance for
doubtful debts. Management makes certain assumptions regarding the
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categorisation of debtors into groups with similar risk profiles so that the effect of
any impairment on a group of receivables would not differ materially from the
impairment that would have been determined had each debtor been assessed for
impairment on an individual basis. The determination of this allowance is
predisposed to the utilisation of estimates, assumptions and management judgements. In determining this allowance the estimates are made about the
probability of recovery of the debtors, based on their past payment history and risk
profile.
Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortisation recognised on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values
of the underlying items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on
management’s estimation of the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of
the period of use, its current use, expected future use, and the entity’s expectations
about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its useful life. In
evaluating how the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual
value, management considers the impact of technology and minimum service
requirements of the assets.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets are depreciated over their useful life, taking into account residual
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are
assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In reassessing
asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes
are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future
market conditions, the remaining life of the asset, and projected disposal values.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The CGE assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the CGE estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of
non-financial assets, management is required to rely on the use of estimates about
the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case of cash-generating
assets). For non-cash-generating assets, estimates are made regarding the
depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of the asset,
depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information.
Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognised as
liabilities in the statement of financial position on a basis of an estimate reliably
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estimated by management. Provisions are present obligations determined on the
probability that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required to settle the obligations. On the other hand, contingent
liabilities are not recognised as liabilities because they are either:
•

Possible obligations, as it has yet to be confirmed whether the CGE has a present
obligation that could lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential, or

•

Present obligations that do not meet the recognition criteria of a liability either
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
A contingent asset is not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.
According to GRAP, the term “contingent” is used for liabilities and assets that
are not recognised because their existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the CGE.
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1.3

STANDARDS OF GENERAL RECOGNISED ACCOUNTING PRACTICE EFFECTIVE FOR FINANCIAL
PERIODS COMMENCING ON OR AFTER 1 APRIL 2013

Standard

Summary and impact

Effective date

GRAP 18 –
Segment
reporting

This standard establishes principles for
reporting financial information by
segments.
The impact on the financial results and
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB – March 2005
Effective date – To be
determined by the Minister of
Finance

GRAP 20 – Related
parties

This standard ensures that the financial
statements contain disclosures necessary
to draw attention to the possibility that
the reporting entity’s financial position
and surplus/deficit may have been
affected by the existence of related
parties and transactions and outstanding
balances from such parties.
The impact on the financial results and
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB – June 2011
Effective date – To be
determined by the Minister of
Finance

GRAP 105 – Transfer
of functions
between entities
under common
control

This standard shall be applied
prospectively to a transaction or event
that involves a transfer of functions when
the transfer date is on or after the initial
adoption of the Standard.
The impact on the financial results and
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB – To be
determined by the Minister of
Finance

GRAP 106 –
Transfer of
functions between
entities not under
common control

This standard shall be applied
prospectively to a transaction or event
that involves a transfer of functions when
the acquisition date is on or after the
initial adoption of the Standard.
The impact on the financial results and
disclosure is considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB – To be
determined by the Minister of
Finance

GRAP 107 –
Mergers

This standard shall be applied
prospectively to a transaction or event
that involves a merger when the merger
date is on or after the initial adoption of
the Standard. The impact on the
financial results and disclosure is
considered to be minimal.

Issued by the ASB – To be
determined by the Minister of
Finance
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1.4

REVENUE RECOGNITION
1.4.1 Other income
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting
period when those inflows result in an increase in Net assets, other than increases relating
to contributions from owners.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Net
of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Interest
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the entity, and the amount of the revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
1.4.2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and
receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases
relating to contributions from owners.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned
to the transferor.
Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which
a transferred asset may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or
service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified.
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement imposed upon the use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting
entity.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is
recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect
of the same inflow.
As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow
of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the
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carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal
to that reduction.
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as
revenue to the extent that the entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or
obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or
obligations have not been met, a liability is recognised.
Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase
in Net assets recognised by the entity.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also
recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as
at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the
increase in Net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently
reduced, because a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.
1.4.3 Transfers
Apart from services in kind, which are not recognised, the constitutional institution
recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the
definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
1.4.4 Gifts and donations, including goods and services in kind
Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when
it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the
constitutional institution and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.5 IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and
would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred
in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of any applicable
legislation including the Public Finance Management Act.
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Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure that has been condoned or will not be recovered
from employees will be included in the Statement of Financial Performance, and where the
expense is recoverable from the employee, the necessary debtor is created.
Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial
Performance and, where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

1.6

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
1.6.1 Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment consist of computer equipment, furniture and fittings,
office equipment and motor vehicles, and are stated at historical costs less accumulated
depreciation.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment, is
capitalised as part of that equipment.
When parts of items of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate components of property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated accordingly.
1.6.2 Repairs and maintenance
Maintenance and repairs, which neither materially add to the value of assets nor
appreciably prolong their useful lives, are expensed during the financial year in which
they are incurred.
1.6.3 Subsequent expenditures
Where the entity replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being
replaced and capitalises the new component.
Subsequent expenditure, including major spare parts and servicing equipment, qualify
as property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.
1.6.4 Depreciation
Depreciation is charged against the assets over the useful lives of an asset from the date
the asset is available for use.
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Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Components of assets that are significant
in relation to the whole asset, and that have different useful lives, are depreciated
separately. The depreciable amount is determined after taking into account an asset’s
residual value, where applicable.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each
financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
The assets bought specifically for a project and intended for donation at the end of the
project’s life are depreciated over the life of the contract as the residual value at that
point will be nil.
1.6.5 Useful lives
The following are the estimated useful lives of the different categories of assets and which
are depreciated on the straight-line method over the following periods.

Computer equipment

5-8 years

Office furniture

10 years

Office equipment

5-10 years

Motor vehicle

7-8 years

1.6.6 Derecognition
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed
of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from
the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
1.6.7 Impairment
The CGE tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each
reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment
is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount)
and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.
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Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value
is adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance in the period that the impairment is identified. An impairment
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been
recognised. A reversal of the impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

1.7

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
1.7.1 Initial recognition
The CGE recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of the asset can
be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Where an intangible asset is acquired by the CGE for no or nominal consideration (ie a
non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that
asset on the date acquired.
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
monetary assets or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset
acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value is not
determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
Intangible assets consist of computer software. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Purchased computer software and the direct costs associated with the customisation
and installation thereof, are capitalised and amortised over the estimated useful lives of
the assets from the date that they are available for use.
1.7.2 Amortisation
Each item is amortised over its useful life once it is available for use. Amortisation is
charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values, and amortisation method are reviewed at
each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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1.7.3 Useful lives
Intangible assets are amortised over the following periods, considered to be their
estimated useful lives: Computer software 5-8 years.

1.7.4 Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the asset. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying value, and is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

1.8

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-MONETARY ASSETS
At each reporting date, the CGE reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are immediately recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in the Statement
of Financial Performance.

1.9

LEASES
1.9.1 Recognition
Assets subject to operating leases are those wherein substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the lessee through the lease and are not
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. The operating lease expense is
recognised over the course of the lease arrangement.
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The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at inception date, namely whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.
For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed
to be 1 January 2005, in accordance with the transitional requirements of GRAP 3.

1.9.2 Measurement
The lease expense recognised for operating leases is charged to the Statement of
Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. To the
extent that the straight-lined lease payments differ from the actual lease payments the
difference is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as either lease payments
in advance (operating lease asset) or lease payments payable (operating lease liability)
as the case may be. This resulting asset and / or liability is measured as the undiscounted
difference between the straight-line lease payments and the contractual lease
payments.

1.9.3 Derecognition
The operating lease liability is derecognised when the entity’s obligation to settle the
liability is extinguished. The operating lease asset is derecognised when the entity no
longer anticipates economic benefits to flow from the asset.
Leases that the CGE enters into as a lessee, and where the lessor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset, are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged against revenue on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

1.10

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.10.1 Defined contribution plan
Contributions made towards the fund are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance in the period that such contributions become payable. This
contribution expense is measured at the undiscounted amount of the contribution paid
or payable to the fund. A liability is recognised to the extent that any of the contributions
have not yet been paid. Conversely an asset is recognised to the extent that any
contributions have been paid in advance.
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1.10.2 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the CGE is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to
terminate employment before the normal retirement date. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised if the CGE has made an offer encouraging
voluntary redundancy; it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably.

1.10.3 Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits encompass all those benefits that become payable in the
short term, ie within a financial year or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore,
short-term employee benefits include remuneration, compensated absences and
bonuses.
Short-term employee benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
as services rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognised when
the specific event occurs. These short-term employee benefits are measured at their
undiscounted costs in the period the employee renders the related service or the specific
event occurs.
Short-term employee benefits, including annual leave, are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses as the related service is provided. A provision is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash plans if the CGE has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

1.11

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
1.11.1 Initial recognition
Financial instruments are recognised initially when CGE becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial instruments or their component parts
are classified on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability, or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial liabilities are recognised using trade
date accounting.
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1.11.2 Measurement
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset or a financial liability not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial
liability.
The CGE measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using
the following categories defined in paragraph 11.2.1
(a) Financial instruments at fair value.
(b) Financial instruments at amortised cost.
(c) Financial instruments at cost.
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment
review.
1.11.2.1

Financial assets

The CGE’s principle financial assets are accounts receivable and cash and cash
equivalents, which are classified as financial instruments at amortised cost.
1.11.2.2

Receivable from non-exchange transactions

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and subsequently stated at amortised cost, less provision
for impairment. All receivables are assessed at least annually for possible impairment.
Impairments of receivables are determined in accordance with the accounting policy
for impairments. Impairment adjustments are made through the use of an allowance
account.
Bad debts are written off in the year in which they are identified as irrecoverable.
Amounts receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as current.
Interest is charged on overdue accounts.
1.11.2.3

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.
Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly
liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of three
months or less, and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and deposits held on call with banks.
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1.11.2.4

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debt less
principal payments and amortisations.
The CGE’s principal financial liabilities are accounts payable.
1.11.2.5

Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.
1.11.2.6

Payables from non-exchange transactions

Short-term payables from non-exchange transactions are stated at nominal values. The
non-exchange payables arise from legislative, mainly employee, taxes payable to state
agencies and/or contractual agreements, other than exchanges, entered into willingly
by employees of the Commission.
1.11.2.6.1 Derecognition
The CGE derecognises a financial asset (or, where applicable, part thereof) only when:
•
•

•

The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
The CGE retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass
through’ arrangement.
The Commission has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either
i.
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
ii.
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled, or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same customer on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the surplus or
deficit for the year.

Commission for Gender Equality

95

A society free from gender oppression and inequality

1.11.3 Offset of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the Net amount reported in the Statement
of Financial Position only when the CGE has a legally enforceable right to set off
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a Net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
1.11.4 Impairments
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment
review. The CGE assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
For financial assets held at amortised cost:
The entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the entity determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised, are not included in the collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset‘s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset‘s original effective interest rate (ie the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed either directly or
by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of
the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
1.11.5 Risk management of financial assets and liabilities
It is the policy of the CGE to disclose information that enables the user of its financial
statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
to which the entity is exposed on the reporting date.
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Risks and exposure are disclosed in the following four paragraphs.
Credit risk
Each class of financial instrument is disclosed separately. Maximum exposure to credit risk
not covered by collateral is specified. Financial instruments covered by collateral are
specified.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Sufficient cash is maintained to manage the CGE's liquidity risk.
Interest risk
Interest rate risk originates from the uncertainty about the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument which fluctuates because of changes in market interest rates.
Management has assessed the impact of interest rate risk on the operations of the entity
and considers the risk to be negligible.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rate and equity prices, will affect the entities, income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

1.12

PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that it will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.
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1.13

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CGE, or a present obligation
that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required
to settle the obligation, or if the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

1.14

CHANGE IN ESTIMATE
A change in accounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset
or liability, or related expense, resulting from reassessing the expected future benefits
and obligations associated with that asset or liability. Estimates are revised when new
information becomes available which indicates a change in circumstances upon which
the estimates were formed. The Commission accounts for the changes in estimate
prospectively in the financial statements. The effect of change is incorporated in the
period in which the estimates are revised. As a result the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and associated expenses or income are adjusted in the period of change in
estimate.

1.15

PRIOR PERIOD ERROR
Prior period errors are omissions from and misstatements in the CGE’s financial statements
for one or more prior periods arising from failure to use/misuse reliable information that
was available when the financial statements for that period were issued, and could have
been reasonably expected to be taken into account in those financial statements.
All errors identified should be corrected retrospectively. The comparative amounts for
prior periods are restated in the corresponding periods in which the error occurred or, if
the error occurred before that date, the opening balance of assets, liabilities and Net
assets are restated at the earliest period presented.
If it is impractical to determine period-specific effects of the error, restate opening
balances for the earliest period practicable.

1.16

RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party
or to exercise significant influence or join the party in making financial and operating
decisions.
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A party is related to the CGE if the party is directly or indirectly, through one or more
intermediaries the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Commission.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling activities of the CGE. All individuals from
management up to the commissioners are key management individuals in their dealings
with the CGE.
Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the
standard. The objective of the standard and financial statement is to provide relevant
and reliable information and therefore materiality is considered in the disclosure of these
transactions.

1.17

COMPARATIVES
Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in
the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the
prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in
accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as
is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.18

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
All adjusting events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are issued, have been
reported and adjusted for in the financial statements.
Those events that are indicative of conditions that came into existence subsequent to
the reporting date have not been adjusted for.
The CGE will adjust the amounts recognised in the financial statements to reflect
adjusting events after the reporting date that the event occurred.
The CGE will disclose the nature of the event and estimate its financial effect or a
statement that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting
events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statements.
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Notes
to the Annual Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013
2013
R

2. Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
3. Other Income
Interest Received
Donation Received
Sundry Income

4. Administrative Expenses
Bank Charges
Computer Servicing, Internet & Website
Office Cleaning, Maintenance, Plants & Security
Telecommunication Expenses
Staff Travel – Claims and Related Expenditure
Other Expenses
Other Administrative Expenses
Travel Expenses
Water & Electricity
Printing & Photocopying
Postal, Telecom and Delivery Fees
Publicity Functions and Conferences
Audit Fees
Consulting Fees

5. Personnel Costs
Basic
Medical and Company Contribution
Unemployment Insurance Fund
Performance Bonus – paid in lieu of past periods
Performance Bonus – provision
Provision for Leave Pay
Salary Bonus – 13th Cheque
Overtime
Provident Fund – Company Contribution
Allowances
Company Contribution Other

2012
Restated
R

59 073 000

55 150 000

693 071
1 374 675
100 731
2 168 477

272 961
242 270
515 231

49 358
857 759
404 976
666 806
460 963
291 514
690 306
7 404 988
770 315
1 221 081
1 699 378
3 332 637
1 503 289
1 309 424
20 662 794

32 966
783 209
225 378
534 253
196 240
31 687
230 329
3 693 817
640 261
1 129 459
2 044 031
772 066
1 598 044
595 940
12 507 681

24 402 150
382 929
124 014
1 011 911
502 700
1 878 838
103 384
2 674 546
2 872 616
557 914
34 511 002

22 015 532
434 862
118 207
1 713 908
1 344 298
581 895
1 770 301
93 379
2 641 987
3 017 345
517 499
34 249 213

Note: The Commissioners and Key Management’s Remuneration is included in Note 17 as contained in this report.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

2013
R

2012
Restated
R

6. Other Operating Expenses
Staff Training and Development
Legal Fees
Maintenance, Repairs and Running Costs
- Property and Buildings
- Other Maintenance Repairs and Running Costs
Office Consumables and Refreshments
Operating Lease Expenses
Total

7. Finance Cost
Interest Paid
Bank Interest Paid

8. Assets Written Off (Refer to disposals in Note 11)
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Book Value
Assets Written Off

9. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at Bank
Cash on Hand

10. Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions
Other Receivables
Less: Impairment Allowance
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491 679
703 162

1 934 103

259 621
266 930
236 263
1 957 655

37 489
192 712
136 889
183 394
2 484 587

30 936
30 936

37 040
37 040

1264 568
(1 197 594)
66 974

768 591
(693 623)
74 968

(66 974)

(74 968)

18 051 295
10 292
18 061 587

11 281 223
7 210
11 288 433

654 948
(440 080)
214 868

612 899
(441 007)
171 892
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

2013
R

10.1 Receivables: Ageing
Current (0-30 days)
31-60 days
61-90 days
+365 days

10.2 Impairment Allowance: Ageing
+365 days

10.3 Reconciliation of Impairment Allowance
Balance at beginning of year
Impairment debts written off against provision
Recovered

2012
Restated
R

39 358
24 768
590 822
654 948

161 240
10 652
441 007
612 899

440 080
440 080

441 007
441 007

441 007
(927)
440 080

719 650
(278 643)
441 007

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The entity does not hold any collateral as security.
The credit quality of receivables can be assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. Repayment agreements have been entered into with those long
outstanding receivables, where applicable, whilst other receivables are collected through litigation
processes.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

11. Property, Plant and Equipment
Reconciliation of Carrying Value 2013

Opening Net Carrying Amount
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Additions

Office
Equipment
R

570 824
2 129 673
(1 558 849)

Motor
Vehicles
R

373 201
1 765 080
(1 391 879)

14 439

-

Office
Furniture
R

Computer
Equipment
R

590 465
3458 628
(2 868 163)

987 830
7 204 722
(6 216 892)

124 230

179 869

Total
R

2 522 320
14 558 103
(12 035 783)
318 538

Depreciation

(372 704)

-

(127 592)

(552 285)

(1 052 581)

Disposals carrying amount
Cost
Gross Disposal Accumulated
Depreciation

6 037
222 501
(216 464)

-

29 658
177 929
(148 271)

31 280
864 138
(832 858)

66 975
1 264 568
(1 197 593)

Closing Net Carrying Amount
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

206 522
1 921 611
(1 715 089)

373 201
1 765 080
(1 391 879)

557 445
3 404 929
(2 847 484)

584 134
6 520 453
(5 936 319)

1 721 302
13 612 073
(11 890 771)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

Reconciliation of Carrying Value 2012
Restated

Opening Net Carrying Amount
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Additions
Depreciation

Office
Equipment
R

Motor
Vehicles
R

Office
Furniture
R

Computer
Equipment
R

Total

855 923
2 305 200
(1 449 277)

572 972
1 765 080
(1 192 108)

769 830
3 378 672
(2 608 842)

1 676 482
7 766 702
(6 090 220)

3 875 207
15 215 654
(11 340 447)

5 008

-

79 956

26 076

111 040

(259 321)

(670 233)

(259 634)

(199 771)

R

(1 388 959)

Disposals carrying amount
Cost
Gross Disposal Accumulated
Depreciation

30 473
180 535
(150 062)

-

-

44 495
588 056
(543 561)

74 968
768 591
(693 623)

Closing Net Carrying Amount
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

570 824
2 129 673
(1 558 849)

373 201
1 765 080
(1 391 879)

590 465
3 458 628
(2 868 163)

987 830
7 204 722
(6 216 892)

2 522 320
14 558 103
(12 035 783)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

2013

2012
Restated
R

R

Property, Plant and Equipment at Fair Value
in Terms of Directive 7
The asset verification performed at year end identified
assets which have not been included in the asset register.
These assets have been fair valued in terms of Directive 7
in order for these assets to be recorded on the asset
register. The effect from the exercise is illustrated below.

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised at Fair Value
Office Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Office Furniture
Computer Equipment
Net Assets

-

46 672
57 093
72 195
175 960

-

42 004
45 674
57 756
145 434

Adjustment to Carrying Amounts Previously Reported
Office Equipment
Furniture and Fittings
Computer Equipment

Assets given as Security
No assets were given as security.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

11.1 Change in Accounting Estimate
Included in depreciation for 2012/13 is an effect from a change in estimate of R561 280 arising
from the management decision to change the useful lives of assets as well as the assessment
of residual values in terms of GRAP 17.
The change will result in an increase of depreciation in future periods, for the following
categories of PPE items:
2013
Current
R

Computer Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Office Furniture
Office Equipment
Software
Total Decrease / (Increase)
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216 426
199 771
131 698
13 385
561 280
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2014
Future
(Increase)
R

(216 426)
(199 771)
(131 698)
(13 385)
(561 280)
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

2013

2012
Restated
R

R
11.2

Intangible Assets

Reconciliation of Carrying Amount

Opening Net Carrying Amount
Gross Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

278 569
(278 569)

490 843
(490 843)

Additions

-

-

Depreciation

-

-

Disposals Carrying Amount
Gross Disposal Cost
Gross Disposal Accumulated Depreciation

-

Closing Net Carrying Amount
Gross Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

212 274
(212 274)

278 569
(278 569)

278 569
(278 569)

7
278 569

7
278 569

Fully Amortised Items Still In Use
The number of fully amortised assets that are still in use
Gross cost of fully amortised assets still in use
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...
2013

12.

13.

14.

Payables from Exchange Transactions
Trade Creditors
Accruals

Payables from Non-exhange Transactions
Payroll Creditors
South African Revenue Services

Provisions
Provision for Annual Bonus
Provision for Performance Bonus

Provision for Annual Bonus
Balance at the beginning of the year
Less utilised during the year
Raised during the year

Provision for Performance Bonus
Balance at the beginning of the year
Less utilised during the year
Raised during the year

R

2012
Restated
R

2 880 950
526 703
3 407 653

1 508 707
291 769
1 800 476

2 563 222
494 864
3 058 086

1 246 049
25 962
1 272 011

429 450
1 011 912
1 441 362

434 739
1 344 298
1 779 037

434 739
(434 739)
429 450
429 450

404 755
(404 755)
434 739
434 739

1 344 298
(1 344 298)
1 011 912
1 011 912

1 344 298
1 344 298

The annual bonus is paid to the general staff, management and commissioners in December of each
year. The bonus to staff is a fringe benefit in terms of the respective contracts of employment whilst
management and commissioners are on a total cost to company (CTC).
On the other hand, the performance bonus is payable to staff and management in terms of the
performance management and development policy of the Commission. The provision for the annual
bonus is estimated on the basis of the salary level at reporting date and shall be payable at the end
of the calendar year contingent upon the fulfilment of obligations set out in the employment contract
and the policies of the Commission. The performance bonus is payable within the ensuing 12 months’
period after the reporting date and is determined on the basis of an objective assessment of individual
staff members’ performance during the period. The provision is estimated to be the current figures
subject to the finalisation of the assessment as referred to above. There are no reimbursements
expected.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

15. Prior period errors
The following prior period errors have been identified and the specific effect on financial
statements accordingly disclosed. Effects on 2013 financial statements are as follows. These
prior period errors have no tax effect as CGE is exempt in terms of the Income Tax Act.

15.1 Assets previously expensed but should have been capitalised
During the verification process assets were identified which were not included in the assets
register. This was due to these assets having previously been expenses when they should have
been capitalised. These assets were corrected by assigning a fair value to them in terms of
Directive 7.

Impact on Statement of Financial Position

R

Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment 2012
Increase in cost of Computer Equipment
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Computer Equipment
Increase in cost of Office Equipment
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Office Equipment
Increase in cost of Furniture and Fittings
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Furniture

145 435
72 195
(14 439)
46 672
(4 667)
57 093
(11 419)

Increase in opening Accumulated Surplus

(175 960)

Impact on Statement of Financial Performance
Increase in depreciation (2011/2012)
Increase in depreciation for Computer Equipment
Increase in depreciation for Office Equipment
Increase in depreciation for Furniture
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

15.

Prior period errors (continued)

15.2. Assets previously disposed now verified
During the verification process assets were identified which were indicated as being
disposed of in prior years; however their existence was verified through the physical
counting process. These disposals were reversed in order to record them back onto the
asset register.
Impact on Statement of Financial Position

R

Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment 2012
Increase in cost of Computer Equipment
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Computer Equipment
Increase in cost of Office Equipment
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Office Equipment
Increase in cost of Furniture and fittings
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Furniture and Fittings

54 346
99 376
(59 837)
26 267
(15 825)
8 868
(4 503)

Increase in opening Accumulated Surplus in 2011

(70 012)

Impact on Statement of Financial Performance
Increase in Depreciation in 2011/2012)
Increase in depreciation for Office Equipment
Increase in depreciation for Office Furniture
Increase in depreciation for Computer Equipment
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

15.3 Correction of cost on certain assets
Management performed an investigation into the asset register specifically relating to IT
assets previously purchased through SITA. It was noted that certain of the assets were
loaded at incorrect amounts. It was also noted during this investigation that certain of the
items’ cost had been changed to R0 and no longer reflected the original price. The cost
of these assets were corrected as well, along with the SITA costs.
Impact on Statement of Financial Position

R

Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment 2012
Increase in cost of Computer Equipment
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Computer Equipment
Increase in cost of Office Equipment
Increase in accumulated depreciation for Office Equipment
Increase in cost of Furniture and fittings

406 898
398 702
(239 789)
277 810
(82 528)
52 704

Increase in opening Accumulated Surplus

(393 739)

Impact on Statement of Financial Performance

R

Decrease in Depreciation for 2011/2012
Increase in Depreciation for Office Equipment
Decrease in depreciation for Computer Equipment

(13 159)
4 088
(17 247)

15.4 Reconciliation of prior period corrections

R

Opening Accumulated Surplus
Adjusted against opening accumulated surplus for 2011
Assets previously expensed
Assets previously disposed
Correction of item costs and depreciation

3 568 627
639 712
175 960
70 012
393 740

Restated accumulated surplus balance as at 31 March 2011
Surplus for 2012 before restatement
Increase in depreciation for 2012 as per note 15.1 to 15.3

4 208 339
4 955 815
(33 033)

Restated balance as at 31 March 2012

9 131 121
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

2013
R

2012
Restated
R

16. Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus / (deficit) for the year
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Assets written off
Contribution to provision
Other income – interest receivable
Operating surplus /
(deficit) before working capital changes

2 959 535

4 922 782

1 052 581
66 974
(337 675)

1 388 960
74 968
(2 976 108)

3 741 415

3 410 602

(Increase) / Decrease in receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in payables
Cash generated by / (utilised in) operations

(42 976)
3 393 251
7 091 690

(21 376)
(860 254)
2 528 972

17. Related parties

The CGE is a Schedule 1 Constitutional Institution in terms of the Public Finance Management
Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended). Although the CGE is an independent institution, created under
Chapter 9 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, the CGE has defined relationships
with other entities that fall within the national sphere of government.
Unless specifically disclosed, the transactions between the CGE and these entities are concluded
on an arm's length basis. There are no restrictions in the CGE's capacity to transact with any entity.

Commission for Gender Equality

112

A society free from gender oppression and inequality

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements continued...

17.1. Key management
Fees paid to commissioners and executive management remuneration.
COMMISSIONERS

SALARIES

JL Hicks

537 712

TE Maitse
M Shozi

2013 TOTAL

2012 TOTAL

199 807

737 519

649 175

103 388

30 156

133 544

751 153

599 283

125 885

725 168

713 781

-

-

-

560 852

NEP Loyilane

460 667

74 534

535 201

472 790

L Nare

189 674

23 770

213 444

-

A Gouws

134 591

-

134 591

-

N Maphazi

109 127

-

109 127

-

99 920

-

99 920

-

T Mpumlwana

529 133

81 035

610 168

-

W Mgoqi

460 667

60 000

520 667

-

53 000

16 267

69 267

-

3 277 162

611 454

3 888 616

3 597 521

2013 TOTAL

2012 TOTAL

YN Abrahams

S Stevens Maziya

KV Meruti
TOTAL

%MANAGEMENT

SALARIES

ALLOWANCES

ALLOWANCES

Keketso Maema

829 120

90 000

919 120

960 826

Moshabi Putu

674 006

60 000

734 006

779 979

Joan de Klerk

651 973

78 000

729 973

658 928

* Victor Mavhidula

135 068

81 690

216 758

748 430

* K Anirudhra

460 893

257 669

718 562

-

RJ Rapoo

646 230

72 000

718 230

238 747

PK Moholola

719 614

-

719 614

59 670

4 116 904

639 359

4 756 263

3 446 580

TOTAL

* Acting HOD Legal : 01-04-2012 – 30-06-2012
* Acting HOD Legal : 01-07-2012 – 31 March 2013
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17.2 Related party transactions with government institutions
Listed below are public sector entities which the Commission transacted with during the
reporting period.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

The Department for Women, Children and Persons with Disabilities
The National Department of Public Works
Telkom South Africa Ltd
South African Broadcasting Corporation
South African Revenue Services
Unemployment Insurance Fund
Compensation Fund
Services Sector, Education and Training Authority

The transactions occurred in accordance with the established government-wide operating
parameters
18.

Irregular Expenditure

During the financial years 2008/09 and 2009/10 the CGE did not have a supply chain management
unit as required by PFMA Act and Treasury Regulations; as a result Irregular expenditure was
incurred. An SCM unit was duly established during the 2010/11 year. At the time of reporting the
irregular expenditure amounting to R28 966 996 (2011/2012) was still to be regularised by the
relevant authority. In this case, National Treasury is being consulted to grant approval for an
application for condonation.
2013

18.1

18.2

R

2012
Restated
R

Opening Balance
Transactions deemed irregularly incurred
during the year

28 966 996

23 393 135

1 902 088

5 573 861

Total irregular expenditure incurred

30 869 084

28 966 996

-

37 040

Reconciliation Irregular Expenditure

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Interest and Penalties Paid
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19. Reconciliation of the budget with surplus in the statement of financial performance.
EXPENDITURE
LINE

BUDGET

ADJUSTMENT
TO BUDGET

AVAILABLE
BUDGET

ACTUAL

R

R

R

R

R

Income

UNDER /
(OVER)
BUDGET
R

(58 530 000)

(543 000)

(59 073 000)

(59 073 000)

Other Income

-

-

-

(2 168 477)

2 168 477

Administrative
Expenses

15 336 037

-

15 336 037

20 729 768

(5 393 731)

Other Operating
Expenses

1 055 460

-

1 055 460

1 957 655

(902 195)

Personnel Costs

40 721 003

543 000

41 264 003

34 511 002

6 753 001

Finance Costs

-

-

-

30 936

(30 936)

Depreciation

-

-

-

1 052 580

(1 052 580)

Capital
Expenditure

-

-

1 417 500

-

-

Operating Surplus for the period to 31 March 2013

(2 959 535)

Capital Expenditure – Actual spending: refer to Note 11

1 542 035
(318 536)

– Underspent Capital Expenditure Budget
Net Surplus after accounting for capital expenditure budget

-

1 098 964
(2 959 535)

2 959 535

The Commission recorded additional income of R2.2 million, mainly from donations received and
interest earned from excess cash held in the bank account.
An over-expenditure of R5.3 million was reported, resulting primarily from a R1.3 million charge to
the Statement of Financial Performance, being the value of the donation received in kind from
the South African Broadcasting Corporation. The donation was for a promotional campaign in
pursuance of the Commission’s legislated mandate. Travelling and accommodation further
added a spending pressure with a R2.1 million unfavourable variance, whilst water and electricity
contributed R700 000 overspending, mainly due to more than the anticipated electricity tariff
increases that realised during the course of the year. Computing and telecommunication
expenses added a further R1.4 million overspending for the period under review.
Depreciation expenses of R1 million were charged, although not budgeted for. However this was
compensated for by a commensurate under-spending on capital expenditure of R1.1 million.
For the full financial year, personnel expenditure realised at R6, 7 million under budget, primarily
due to vacancies within the establishment.
The overall unspent funds from a total allocation of R59 million is a Net saving of R2.6 million, largely
contributed by an additional income of R2.1 million recorded from other revenue sources.
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20. Operating Leases
The CGE leases twelve (12) photocopier machines from Konica Minolta and ITEC for
a period of 36 months, respectively effective from 1 June 2012 and 1 August 2012. The
lease payments for 4 differentiated copiers from Minolta are fixed at an average
rental of R3 407 per machine, per month, whilst the 8 standard copiers from ITEC are
charged at a fixed installment of R1 491 per copier per month.

Future minimum lease payments at 31 March 2013
Not later han one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

R
276 803
346 804
-

21. Risk Management of Financial Assets and Liabilities
In the ordinary course of operations, an entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. It is therefore a policy of CGE to disclose
information that enables the user of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and
extent of risk arising from financial instruments to which the CGE is exposed on the
reporting date.
Interest rate risk
The CGE’s exposure to the interest rate is limited, as the CGE has no significant interestbearing liabilities. Furthermore the CGE has no significant interest-bearing assets; the
entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.
Liquidity risk
The CGE’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The
CGE manages the liquidity risk through an on-going review of future commitments and the
cash flows arising from allocations by National Treasury
The financial liabilities maturity analysis of the CGE for the reporting period shows
contractual cash outflows on an undiscounted basis as shown on the nex page. The
balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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2013
Financial
Instrument
R

Current
Interest Rate
R

Due in less
than 1 Year
R

Due in two to
five years
R

8.5%

3 407 653

_

3 058 086

_

Current
Interest Rate
R

Due in less
than 1 Year
R

Due in two to
five years
R

8.5%

1 800 476

_

1 272 011

_

Trade and
other
payables
Other
payables
2012
Financial
Instrument
R
Trade and
other
payables
Other
payables

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade receivables. The CGE
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any
other counter party. The CGE banker’s credit rating was listed as F3 for short term and BBB for
long term by Fitch Rating Ltd on 2 April 2013.
Currency risk
Foreign exchange rate risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The CGE is not exposed to any material
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures. The CGE does not hedge foreign
exchange fluctuations.
Price risk
The Commission is not exposed to equity securities price risk because there are no investments
held by the CGE and classified as either for sale or at fair value through surplus or deficit.
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22. Events After the Reporting Date
At the time of reporting, there were no favourable or unfavourable events known by
management to have an actual or potential effect on the financial statements except for
the permission granted by National Treasury to retain and use the surplus funds of R8.5
million accumulated to the financial year ending 31 March 2012. The application was
granted on 05 June 2013.
23. Contingent Asset
The Commission, as part of its benefits policy, allows its officials to participate in an insured
benefit scheme in which the employee remuneration income is protected in an event of
temporary and total disability. During the reporting period, an employee of the
Commission lost income due to prolonged illness, and the Commission as part of its policy
and practice paid the affected employee in anticipation of an insured benefit to an
estimate of R180 000 for the duration of the employee’s sickness, in which the sick leave
grant was depleted by the employee.
24. Contingent Liabilities
24.1 Axolute Investments CC
Axolute Investments CC was contracted by the CGE to provide information technology
services on a contract effective during the 2007-2009 reporting period. The CGE unilaterally
cancelled the contract in 2008 for reasons of improper procurement procedures. The
service provider, in 2009, instituted litigation proceedings against the CGE for claims
amounting to R814 192.56, representing fees for the remainder of the contract. No
provision has been made in the Annual Financial Statements as management believes
that there are good prospects for defending the case. The matter was set down previously
but subsequently postponed at the instance of the plaintiff to a date still to be determined
by the South Gauteng Court.
24.2 Accumulated Surplus
The Commission has reported surplus funds resulting from underspending on the
government grant received from National Treasury. The surplus was generated from the
2010/2011 reporting period and accumulated to R11.1 million by the end of the 2012/2013
financial year. The public sector prescripts to which the Commission must comply requires
a surrender of the surplus back to National Treasury unless permission is granted to retain
and use by the reporting entity. The Commission duly made applications to retain these
funds and the applications were granted for the retention of R8.5 million subject to
conditions that the money be spent solely for the procurement of the IT infrastructure and
investment in the motor vehicle fleet. An obligation to surrender the value of the full grant
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shall arise if the conditions set out here are not fully met by the Commission. Similarly, the
Commission shall be required to surrender surpluses generated for the reporting period
ending 31 March 2013 unless a corresponding application is granted for the retention by
National Treasury. For all the periods the amount to be surrendered over is the net
difference between surplus and interest income reported. The cumulative interest income
reported in the period was R972 912.
25. Financial Instruments
Categories of financial instruments
Except as detailed in the following table, CGE management considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.
Notes

2013
R

2012
R

18 276 455

11 460 325

9
10

18 061 587
214 868

11 288 433
171 892

12 & 13

6 465 739

3 072 487

18 276 455

11 460 325

9
10

18 061 587
214 868

11 288 433
171 892

12 & 13

6 465 739

3 072 487

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
Carrying Amount
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Carrying Amount
Trade and other payables

CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fair Value
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Fair Value
Trade and Other Payables
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18 Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations
AIDS

Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome

BCEA

Basic Conditions of Employment Act

CBO

Community-based Organisation

CEDAW

The Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Discrimination against Women

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

CGE

Commission for Gender Equality

COO

Chief Operations Officer

COPE

Congress of the People

COSATU

Congress of South African Trade Unions

CSO

Civil Society Organisation

CSW

United National Commission on the Status of Women

DA

Democratic Alliance

DIRCO

Department of International Relations & Cooperation

DOL

Department of Labour

EAP

Employment Assistance Programme

EEA

Employment Equity Act

FBO

Faith-based Organisation

GRAP

SA Standards of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices

HIV

Human Immunodeficiency Virus

ID

Independent Democrats

IFP

Inkatha Freedom Party

ILO

International Labour Organisation

ISBN

International Standard Book Number

IT

Information Technology
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KZN

KwaZulu-Natal

LGBTI

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgendered and Inter-sexed Individuals

LRC

Legal Resources Centre

MDG

Millennium Development Goal

MOU

Memorandum of Understanding

NDI-SA

National Democratic Institute SA

NDP

National Development Plan

NGO

Non-governmental Organisation

NPA

National Prosecuting Authority

OISD

Office on Institutions Supporting Democracy

PEI

Public Education and Information Programme

PEPUDA

Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act

PWMSA

Progressive Women’s Movement of South Africa

SA

South Africa

SABC

South African Broadcasting Corporation

SAHRC

South African Human Rights Commission

SALGA

South African Local Government Association

SWEAT

Sex Worker Education and Advocacy Task Force

UIF

Unemployment Insurance Fund

UDM

United Democratic Movement

UN

United Nations

VEP

Victims Empowerment Programme

WDF

Women’s Development Foundation
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CGE OFFICES
GAUTENG: JOHANNESBURG (HEAD OFFICE)
2 Kotze Street, Women’s Jail, East Wing
Constitution Hill, Braamfontein 2017, South Africa Tel: +27 11 403 7182 - Fax: +27 11 403 7188
EASTERN CAPE (EAST LONDON)
42– 44 Oxford Street, Cnr. Terminus & Oxford Streets, 2nd Floor, Permanent Building
East London, 5200, Tel: +27 43 722 3489 - Fax: +27 43 722 3474
FREE STATE (BLOEMFONTEIN)
49 Charlotte Maxeke Street, 2nd Floor, Fedsure Building, Bloemfontein 9300
Tel: +27 51 430 9348 - Fax: +27 51 430 7372
GAUTENG (PRETORIA)
523 Provisus Building, 3rd Floor, Cnr Stanza Bopape & Steve Biko Street, Acardia, Pretoria
Tel:+27 12 341 6090 - Fax: +27 12 341 4689
KWAZULU-NATAL (DURBAN)
40 Dr. A.B Xuma Road, Suite 1219, Commercial City Durban 4001
Tel:+27 31 305 2105 - Fax: +27 31 307 7435
LIMPOPO (POLOKWANE)
Cnr. Grobler & Schoeman Streets, 1st Floor,106 Library Gardens Square, Polokwane 0700
Tel:+27 15 291 3070 - Fax: +27 15 291 5797
MPUMALANGA (NELSPRUIT)
32 Belle Street Office 212-230, Nelspruit 1200, Tel:+27 13 755 2428 - Fax: +27 13 755 2991
NORTHERN CAPE ( KIMBERLEY)
Cnr. Stead & Knight Streets, Court Building, Kimberley 8301
Tel: +27 53 832 0477 - Fax: +27 53 832 1278
NORTH WEST (MAFIKENG)
38 Molopo Road, Mafikeng 2745, Tel: +27 18 381 1505 - Fax: +27 18 381 1377
WESTERN CAPE (CAPE TOWN)
132 Adderly Street 5th Floor, ABSA Building, Cape Town 8001
Tel: +27 21 426 4080 - Fax: +27 21 424 0549

Report Gender Discrimination.
Do you know how you can report it?

0800 007 709
CGEcomplaints@tip-offs.com

Don’t delay... Report Gender Discrimination Call tip-offs today!

